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Unibet has gambling customers in over 100 countries.

Key markets are Sweden, Norway, Denmark, Finland, the 
Netherlands, Belgium, France, Spain, Italy and Poland. Each 
of these countries has a dedicated marketing team with 
responsibility for adapting Unibet’s games and marketing to 
local conditions.

Since February 2006, Unibet has also become
active in Russia, Estonia, Greece, Hungary and
the Czech Republic.

Unibet in brief  
l Unibet was founded in 1997 and is one of Europe’s largest online 

gaming operators, with over 919,000 registered customers in more than 
100 countries.

l Unibet offers a full range of gaming products – odds on sporting events, 
live odds, a range of casino games, a variety of poker products and 
tournaments as well as lotteries and games – through its website, 
www.unibet.com, and via mobile phone.

l In 2005, Unibet’s customers placed almost 18 million bets. The most 
popular event, with more than 20,000 bets, was the Champions League 
football match between Barcelona and Chelsea in February 2005.

l Unibet’s gaming business is conducted under licences in the United 
Kingdom and Malta. The company has been listed on the Stockholm 
Stock Exchange since 2004.

l Today, Unibet has 180 employees representing 28 different 
nationalities.

Corporate Social Responsibility  
Responsible Gambling

Socially responsible enterprise is about fi nding ways to offer a safe 
playing fi eld for all Unibet gamblers. A lot of emphasis is placed on the 
safety and privacy of its customers. The company applies a strict age limit 
and accepts no customers under the age of 18.
 Unibet is seeking accreditation from G4, the Global Gaming Guidance 
Group. G4 was created by a group of international gaming experts with 
the aim of establishing an industry standard for responsible gaming.

EBA
Unibet is also a member of the European Betting Association (EBA), 
which brings together 12 of the leading gaming companies in Europe. 
The Association’s statute specifi es how the member companies should 
deal with issues such as gambling addiction, illegal gambling by minors, 
gambler privacy and money laundering.

This document is the English original. In the event of 

any discrepancy between the original English 

document and the Swedish translation, the English 

original shall prevail.

The Company’s registered offi ce is at
9 Kingsway, London, WC2B 6XF, UK

The Company’s registered number is
04049409
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2005 in brief  
l Gross winnings revenue continued to increase at a rapid pace,  

to GBP 43.5 (2004: 24.7) million.

l EBIT (Profit from operations) increased by 67 per cent, to GBP 19.9 
(2004: 11.9) million.

l Gross winnings revenue from Unibet’s poker business soared by 684  
per cent, to GBP 14.9 (2004: 1.9) million.

l In August, the Group acquired MrBookmaker.com, providing access to 
two key markets, France and Belgium.

l The number of active customers increased to 171,918 by the year end.1)

l Several new products were launched, including the online scratchcard 
Trixx, and a number of Games. Unibet also introduced gambling via the 
mobile phone.

l The Board of Directors proposes a dividend of SEK 2.25 (2004: 2.25)  
per share/SDR.

1) An active customer is defined as a customer who has placed a bet in the last three months.

Key ratios  

“Unibet’s business objective is to 

become one of the leading players 

in the European ‘moneytainment’ 

market for online gaming.”
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 Breakdown of gross winnings revenue

    
GBPm 2005 2004

Gross winnings revenue, sports book 17.4 16.4
Gross winnings revenue, other gaming products 26.1 8.3
Gross winnings revenue 43.5 24.7
EBIT 19.9 11.9
EBIT margin, % 45.7 48.2
Return on total capital, % 18.9 41.6
Profit after tax 13.7 8.9
Profit margin, % 31.5 36.0
Earnings per share, GBP 0.523 0.370
Equity/assets ratio, % 53.6 58.9
Cash flow per share, GBP –0.07 0.83
Number of employees at year end 175 109
Registered customers at year end 919,000 351,000
Number of shares at year end 28,125,092 25,081,192
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CEO’s comments  

Growth and momentum  
In 2005, Unibet set new records in all product 
areas. The company showed its operational 
strength by rapidly and effectively establising 
itself as one of Europe’s leading providers 
of online Poker. Our success was based on 
a cost-efficient launch of the Poker product 
to our existing customer base and the use of 
Poker as another key tool for attracting new 
customers. 
 The number of active customers more 
than doubled year on year, to almost 172,000, 
whilst gross winnings surged by 76 per cent, 
to GBP 43.5 million. Growth was driven partly 
by strong organic expansion and partly by the 
acquisition of MrBookmaker in August.
 As we enter 2006, Unibet is well positioned 
to meet the future, with a portfolio that is well 
balanced both geographically and in terms of 
products.

Moneytainment
Games and gambling have been around as 
a stimulating form of recreational activity for 
several thousand years. For the vast majority, 
gambling is about getting more out of other 
leisure-time activities, such as watching a 
football match on TV and betting on the 
result. The great majority of games involve 
small stakes and form part of the household 
entertainment budget. We offer our customers 
great Moneytainment.

New records
Since setting up in 1997, Unibet has shown 
the strength of its business model and 
operational organisation. Our ability to exploit 
the opportunities created by changes in our 
environment was also demonstrated in 2005, 
when we continued to expand organically 
whilst also acquiring the leading operator in 
France and the Benelux region, 
MrBookmaker.com.

The acquisition enabled us to rapidly establish 
a leading position in central European markets. 
A rapid, efficient and successful integration 
of MrBookmaker was carried out during the 
Autumn. 
 Poker remains highly popular, and the 
launch of other new innovative gaming products 
proved a success. Poker now accounts for 
almost 60 per cent of non-sports betting 
revenues. Poker products generate risk-free 
revenues and reduce Unibet’s exposure to 
seasonal variations in sports betting margins.

Scandinavia remained our strongest playing 
field, with Poker attracting a strong following 
by Spring 2005. The acquisition of MrBookmaker 
helped to strengthen Unibet’s brand in the 
European market.

Mr Bookmaker.com
In August 2005, Unibet acquired MrBookmaker.com, 
one of the largest gaming operators in France 
and the Benelux countries. During the remainder 
of the year, the two organisations were  
successfully merged, and several key individuals 
from MrBookmaker.com were given global 
responsibilities within the Unibet Group.
 The companies’ differing marketing methods 
and expertise have been combined and  
integrated and are now being put to full use 
in all markets, under the Unibet brand.
 In addition to the numerous strategic  
advantages, the acquisition has enabled  
Unibet to launch a new type of virtual  
gambling – “Games” – that MrBookmaker.com 
already had in its portfolio.
 The integration was completed ahead of 
schedule, despite a challenging timeframe. 
The Group is now strongly focused on  
continued growth in Europe under a single 
brand and with a shared technical platform. 

Strong growth
Online gambling currently accounts for about 
5 per cent of the total global gambling market 
and the market continues to grow at a rapid 
pace. Positive drivers include the growth of 
Internet penetration and broadband as well as 
an increasing acceptance of the Internet as a 
reliable marketplace. The government 
gambling monopolies’ growing offering of 
online gambling services is also helping to 
boost online gambling at the expense of 
the traditional betting shop, as is the launch 
of new products specially adapted for the 
Internet. 

De-monopolisation
In most countries this form of entertainment is 
subject to government regulation. Unibet 
remains positive towards a licensing régime 
with equal fees for all and inspections of the 
industry. In many European countries there is 
still a strong polarisation between the national 
and the EU level. National legislation is gradually 
being adapted, though not without opposition, 
to the EU’s overall ambition to dismantle  
national monopolies for the benefit of  
European consumers and society. Unibet is  
convinced that the industry is heading towards 
a deregulation similar to that which has  
already taken place in the European telecom 
and television sectors. 

A number of legal cases are currently  
before courts in several European countries. 
In Sweden the monopoly issue was a source 
of lively debate in 2005. Unibet keeps a 
close eye on developments around the world. 
Through our membership of the European 
Betting Association (“EBA”) we are also 
proactively driving the issues of interest to  
the industry in this area.

“Unibet way: 

Recruit, moneytain & cost control.” 

CEO Petter Nylander
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New markets
At the start of 2005, Unibet was focused on 
northern Europe, but in the course of the year 
we established ourselves as one of the major 
European players. We increased the number 
of key markets to ten. Our strategic ambition 
to enter new markets organically, such as in 
Spain, and through acquisitions, as in France 
and the Benelux countries, has proven 
successful.  

Responsible gambling
As a gambling operator we are well aware of 
the existence of, and risks of gambling abuse. 
We work actively and determinedly to reduce 
these risks, for example by allowing players to 
set personal gambling limits and if necessary, 
exclude themselves from being allowed to 
gamble at all.  
 Unibet is also a member of the EBA, 
which has laid down strict rules on how to 
assure the safety of gamblers. As part of our 
ambition to provide a secure gambling  
environment, Unibet is seeking accreditation 
from G4, the Global Gaming Guidance Group. 

Our product developers:  
the customers
As customers become more used to online 
gambling, the pressure on operators to 
provide products with a high entertainment 
value increases. Today, Unibet is one of the 
largest providers of online poker, but what 
makes us unique is our range of other games. 
We now offer gambling on 1,000 – 2,000 
events daily in sports and other fields, 25 
different online casino products, eight poker 
games with a number of tournaments, 
and various types of Games, as well as 
Trixx scratchcards. One-stop shop is our 

watchword. In 2005, following our business 
model objective of offering a complete range 
of services, we successfully launched new 
products such as Games and an online 
scratchcard, Trixx, which quickly became 
a popular product. The products were first 
tested on the Scandinavian market and then 
launched globally.

New products are not the only key to  
success. In gambling, the customer interface 
is another crucial factor. Gambling via mobile 
phones was introduced in early 2005. Unibet 
believes this distribution platform has very 
good growth potential.

Tomorrow
Our ambition is to grow at least as fast as the 
overall online gambling market. Unibet should 
be among the top three independent online 
operators in our key markets. To succeed in 
our ambition and successfully adapt to changes 
in our environment, we need to be attuned to 
our customers’ wishes and maintain a flexible 
organisation. We have to distinguish ourselves 
from our competitors by always staying one 
step ahead, in terms of product development, 
new technology and customer service. 
 We will win new markets, and at the  
same time increase customer activity and 
loyalty through cost-efficient cross sales. 
Our strength is our large customer base 
of experienced sports gamblers who have 
been stimulated to also try out other types of 
games.
 Today more than ever, we have the 
strength and the expertise to go into 2006 
as a well-positioned gambling operator in a 
growing market. In 2006, we will work  
intensively to preserve our competitiveness 
and exploit opportunities for growth. Our 

priority is to grow organically, but we will of 
course continue to explore opportunities to 
strengthen the Group through acquisitions.

Employees
Unibet operates in an area where each new 
step involves breaking new ground. The 
key to the process is our staff. In 2005, we 
strengthened our organisation by recruiting 
another 40 people, which means that we are 
now a multinational company with 28 different 
nationalities. Our ratio of sick leave to working 
hours, at less than one per cent in 2005, 
shows that our employees feel happy and 
stimulated in our working environment. But 
we need to make our workplace even better. 
During Spring 2006, we will be appointing an 
HR manager with responsibility for promoting 
creativity and excellence and maintaining a 
shared company culture.
 Finally, I would like to like to say a big 
thank you to all our staff, who helped to beat 
all records in 2005 and make Unibet one of 
the largest gambling operators in the market. 
Together we can dare to do things we could 
not do before, and we should be proud of our 
work! “I bet we’ll win.”

Petter Nylander, CEO
London, 31 March 2006
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Group overview  

Vision
“Moneytainment for everyone, anytime, 
anywhere”

Business concept
Unibet’s business concept is to be a reliable 
online gaming operator, creating added value 
by offering entertaining gaming products and 
a first-class service.

Objectives
l To strengthen Unibet’s position as one 

of the leading players in the European 
‘moneytainment’ market for 
online gaming. 

l To have satisfied customers with a high 
degree of customer loyalty.

l To increase gross winnings at least in line 
with the pace of the overall market for  
online gambling. 

l To have motivated employees with a 
passionate commitment to making Unibet 
one of the leaders in the market. 

Strategy
Unibet’s strategy for achieving its stated  
objectives is: 

Expand into more European countries 
with government gambling monopolies, 
a gambling culture and growing Internet 
penetration
Unibet will continue to target markets with a 
mature gambling culture and a high proportion 
of households connected to the Internet, 
that have until now been dominated by de 
facto monopolies. In Spain and Italy, Internet 
penetration is still well below the average 
for Scandinavia, but nevertheless expanded 
rapidly in 2005. 
 In August 2005, Unibet acquired 
MrBookmaker.com, adding four new markets: 

Belgium, the Netherlands, France and 
Luxembourg.

The company continues to review the 
opportunities to expand through further 
acquisitions. 

Offer a broad range of gaming products 
and launch exciting new products that 
grow quickly
Unibet will continue to launch poker 
throughout the whole European market. More 
games, which help to even out seasonal 
fluctuations arising from sports betting, will be 
developed. 
 In 2005, Unibet launched an online 
scratchcard, Trixx, in Sweden, Norway 
and Denmark. Several games were also 
introduced. 

Develop games for new customer groups
Unibet’s strategy is to stay at the cutting edge 
of product development and regularly launch 
new, entertaining products aimed at retaining 
existing customers, attracting new customers 
and increasing the gross winnings revenue 
generated by customers.  

Develop methods for increasing the 
number of bets
Unibet will continue to target markets from a 
local perspective. The company has dedicated 
marketing teams in each market, with 
responsibility for adapting the games to local 
conditions, increasing bets among existing 
customers and attracting new customers in 
all key markets. Another task is to maximise 
customer loyalty. Unibet therefore conducts 
activities aimed at activating and re-activating 
existing customers. The emphasis is on 
creating an attractive and entertaining offering 
with more exciting products.
 Unibet has introduced various loyalty and 

incentive programmes for local markets that 
are specially adapted to the various stages of 
a gambler’s life cycle.

Ensure many satisfied customers
Unibet uses a global marketing approach 
in combination with local expertise and 
culture. To create conditions that ensure 
customer satisfaction and encourage 
customers to place more bets, Unibet is 
constantly developing new, entertaining and 
reliable products to meet customers’ wishes. 
Examples include a broad range of sports 
betting, speciality games and a range of 
recreational games.

Develop distribution channels
The company has a single system for handling 
all games and gamblers, distribution and 
marketing channels as well as payment 
flows from one and the same platform. 
Unibet’s customers can use several different 
distribution channels, such as the Internet and 
mobile telephones. Unibet keeps a close eye 
on developments in the market for interactive 
services via digital TV and is prepared to 
exploit this area as soon as profitability 
prospects appear to be good and it becomes 
more established as a medium.

Prioritise organic growth
The industry is going through a period of 
rapid growth. To strengthen its position as an 
online gambling site and achieve a competitive 
edge over its competitors, the company 
places a good deal of emphasis on business 
development at a strategic level, especially in 
the areas of both technological and product 
development. 
 In 2005, Unibet added Spain as a new key 
market. In February 2006, ten countries were 
designated as key markets with their own 



5
Unibet 2005 – Group overview

marketing managers and teams: Sweden,  
Norway, Denmark, Finland, the Netherlands, 
Belgium, France, Spain, Italy and Poland. 
 In February 2006, Unibet added five 
‘other’ markets, where gamblers can place 
bets on Unibet’s website using their own 
language; Russia, Estonia, Greece, Hungary 
and the Czech Republic. English and Turkish 
language versions of the website were already 
in existence.

Acquisition of MrBookmaker.com
On 19 August 2005, Unibet Group plc  
acquired 100 per cent of Global Leisure 
Partners Limited, the parent company of the 
sports betting operator MrBookmaker.com.

Despite a challenging timetable, the 
integration was completed sooner than 
anticipated. From the beginning of 2006, the 
combined business is being marketed solely 
under the Unibet brand.

MrBookmaker.com is a well-established, 
profitable European gaming operator with a 

strong focus on France and Belgium. The  
acquisition strengthens Unibet’s European 
presence and gives the company direct  
access to an established marketing 
organisation and customer database in 
a number of key markets. It also created 
opportunities to upgrade Unibet’s website 
with a wider offering of betting systems, 
the launch of new products, new payment 
solutions, betting on French trotting and also 
an improved casino. All new functionality was 
launched before the end of 2005.

The acquisition enabled Unibet to provide 
immediate Europe-wide coverage for its 
products and gave the company a very 
attractive partner for further expansion. The 
new Group constitutes a long-term and 
carefully considered market solution.

At the time of acquisition, MrBookmaker.com 
had 48 employees. Certain managers were 
promoted to leading positions in Unibet. 

Strengths
Unibet operates in an industry where each 
step forward brings substantial rewards. 
Unibet has been active in online gambling 
for seven years, acquiring considerable 
experience of how the market operates.

The brand
Trust is a crucial factor in online gambling and 
consumers’ choice of operator. Among online 
gamblers Unibet is a well-established brand, 
especially in the Nordic countries. The acquisition 
of MrBookmaker.com has strengthened the 
brand in new markets.

Through sponsorship of the Unibet cycling 
team, the brand will be exposed to the 
company’s new markets in southern Europe, 
where cycling is the second largest sport. 

Customer base
Unibet’s customer base has grown 
substantially in the last four years. In 
December 2005, the company had over 
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Grand Prix d’Ouverture La Marseillaise
In January 2006, Unibet cycled as a team for the first time. The race started on 31 January, and viewers in France and other central European countries followed the 
cyclists’ fight against the clock. Unibet’s team was in the leading group from the start, but competition was tough. On the last finishing straight the Unibet team was in 
the lead while team member Baden Cooke from Australia prepared for the final push. With the finishing tape in sight, the fight was now between Cooke from Unibet 
and Philippe Gilbert from an opposing team. With five metres to go, there was no longer any doubt. Unibet Team had claimed its first victory. When Cooke broke the 
tape the sense of triumph was palpable.
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919,000 registered customers in more than 
100 countries. Out of these, 171,918 were 
classified as active. The term is defined as 
a registered customer who has placed a bet 
through Unibet in the last 90 days. The growth 
in the number of active customers provides 
a good indication of the potential growth of 
gross winnings.

A large customer base gives the strength 
to invest in new products and a wider range 
of events that are adapted to Unibet’s priority 
markets and designed to attract new customers. 

Unibet’s customer database is also an 
excellent source of customer information. 
Unibet uses the information to tailor its 
marketing to different regions and countries 
as well as to individual customers.

The acquisition of MrBookmaker.com has 
strengthened the company’s customer base 
significantly.

Customer services
Bets are placed round the clock, but 70 per 
cent of all bets are placed on Friday and 
Saturday. As poker continues to grow, the 
trend is starting to change. Unibet’s customer 
service function is open 24 hours a day, seven 
days a week, 365 days a year. As the 
company has customers in more than 100 
countries, Unibet has multilingual customer 
service representatives who can help the 
customers in their own language. 

As part of the company’s commitment to 
responsible gaming the customer service staff 
receive training in how to detect and handle 
any indications of gambling addiction, money 
laundering and gambling by minors.

During 2005, the customer service function 
handled over 263,000 calls and 97,000 e-mails. 
 
Cost per transaction
The size of the customer base, gross 
turnover and gross winnings revenue provide 
competitive advantages that enable Unibet to 
spread its fixed costs.

Unibet’s cost for each new bet is negligible. 
This allows the company to offer competitive 
odds and offers to create a first-class gaming 
experience.
 Economies of scale and high marginal 
revenues are characteristic of the industry.  

Marketing
The distribution form has no limits, but to 
grow in new and existing markets Unibet 
needs strong and geographically targeted 
marketing initiatives. Each key market has a 
designated marketing manager with a good 
understanding of the local market. 

The database is a key source of customer 
information. Activities and gambling habits are 
registered and used to create targeted and 
effective marketing activities. Messages can 
be adapted to a specific region, market and 
type of gambler. Several customer-adapted 
PR activities were implemented in the various 
markets. 

The decision to sponsor the Unibet cycling 
team will prove especially valuable in the 
Group’s southern European markets, where 
the racing season lasts from January to  
November.

IT infrastructure
Unibet has established a foundation for 
control and flexibility. The foundation is the 
Group’s knowledge about gambling. The tool 
is the technological environment to handle it. 

The gaming application is business-critical, 
and Unibet has gone to considerable lengths 
to ensure that it is able to handle various types 
of interruption. All servers are duplicated, i.e. 
if one server fails, another will immediately 
take over. 

Expertise – “By players, for players”
In 2005, two well known brands came  
together through Unibet’s acquisition of  
MrBookmaker.com. Their combined 
knowledge about gambling is unique. 

Passion
“By players, for players” means that Unibet’s 
employees are of one mind with the players, 
enabling them to predict what they want.
The objective is to create a gambling site for 
people with the same passion for gambling. 
Everything that is done internally is followed 
by the question: “Am I doing what I am doing 
as one gambler for another?”

Reliability
Dependable odds and secure transactions are 
the basis of reliability.

Communications and payment transactions 
are protected against intrusion and encrypted 
according to best practice among the major 
credit card companies.

Unibet has a risk policy for each individual 
sport and/or league and type of game, 
depending on the customer profile. These 
policies constitute strictly controlled guidelines 
for the risks that the Group is willing to accept. 
The risk managers’ task is to manage risk in 
Unibet’s overall sports betting business. 

Friendliness
The website and mail dispatches are Unibet’s 
primary interfaces with the customers. To 
facilitate gambling and make customers 
feel welcome, the website is available in 17 
different languages. A Unibet customer should  
always feel at home while at the same time 
being pleasantly surprised by the wide range 
of interesting articles and news about  
matches, events and games.

Unibet is committed to responsible gaming. 
The company is seeking G4 accreditation and 
is a member of the European Betting  
Association (EBA).

Entertainment
Unibet offers diversity by providing a wide 
variety of games for a broad target group. 
In 2005, the company introduced new 
products such as Games to attract new and 
existing customers and make gambling more 
enjoyable.

By focusing on digital distribution networks, 
Unibet improves the scalability of its business, 
which in the long term is a cost-efficient way 
to grow.
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Gross Winnings revenue
Unibet’s gross winnings revenues have 
increased tremendously over the last four 
years, from GBP 2.8 million in 2001 to GBP 
43.5 million in 2005. A long-term objective 
is to continue increasing gross winnings 
revenue and gross winnings margin at a pace 
at least in line with the online market growth, 
in Unibet’s priority markets.

Gross winnings margin – sports betting
Unibet’s gross winnings margin on sports 
betting i.e. gross winnings revenue as a 
percentage of gross turnover (see definitions 
on page 56), can vary significantly from one 
month (even one day) to the next, depending 
on the outcome of various sporting events.
 For example, a lower gross winnings 
margin will be achieved if all the favourites 
win, and conversely, if all the ‘underdogs’ 
win, a higher gross winnings margin will be 
achieved.
In addition, levels of gross turnover are 
influenced by the seasons for big sporting 

Unibet 2005 – Financial objectives

Financial objectives  

Cash position and indebtedness
In December, Unibet and Royal Bank of  
Scotland plc reached an agreement on certain 
loan facilities. These comprise a medium-term 
loan of GBP 22.25 million and a rolling credit 
facility of GBP 7.75 million. The term loan is 
intended to refinance loans in connection with 
the acquisition of MrBookmaker Group. Both 
loan facilities have a term of 3 years. 
 The company’s liquid assets may be  
needed for future regulatory requirements.  
For instance, it is possible that requirements 
may be introduced to the effect that the  
company will be obliged to maintain sufficient 
cash assets to cover all customer balances 
on accounts held separately from Unibet’s 
creditors. Unibet is already currently complying 
with this as an internal policy. 

Dividend policy
Unibet’s dividend policy is to pay a dividend of 
approximately 50 per cent of the Group’s net 
profit after tax to the shareholders, provided 
that other financial objectives are met and an 
appropriate capital structure is maintained. In 
2005, Unibet posted a net income after tax 
of GBP 13.7 million. The Board of Directors 
has proposed that the dividend remains at 
last year’s level in view of the increasing 
opportunities for expansion in Europe, which 
may require further access to liquid assets. 
The Board therefore proposes a dividend of 
SEK 2.25 per share/Swedish Depositary 
Receipt, or approximately GBP 4.6 million in 
total, based on year end exchange rates.

Outlook
The gambling market is relatively new but 
is growing at a fast pace. However, as 
opportunities for growth are affected by 
legal restrictions, Unibet does not provide 
quantitative forecasts for individual years or 
quarters.

Financial overview 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Gross winnings revenue, GBPm 43.5 24.7 13.0 9.5 2.8

Gross profit, GBPm 42.9 23.9 12.0 9.0 2.6

EBIT, GBPm 19.9 11.9 3.8 1.2 –1.5

EBIT margin, % 45.7 48.2 29.2 12.6 –53.5

Profit after tax, GBPm 13.7 8.9 2.9 1.1 –1.6

Profit margin, % 31.5 36.0 22.3 11.6 –57.1

Registered customers, no. 919,000 351,000 256,000 176,000 58,000

Active customers, no. 171,918 79,655 64,199 49,678 27,691�
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Cumulative Gross winnings margin on  
Sports Betting

events. High season for Unibet’s sports 
betting business reflects the seasons for 
events such as the European football leagues, 
major golf and tennis tournaments, and 
the Nordic and North American ice hockey 
leagues.
 Over time, the gross winnings margin 
evens out, however. From January 2004 to 
December 2005 it averaged 7.6 per cent, as 
shown in the graph below. The bars show 
the monthly performance of Unibet’s gross 
winnings margin. See bar chart below.

Gross winnings margin – non-sports 
betting
Included in the total gross winnings margin 
are the gross winnings revenues from non-
sports betting. Here, the gross winnings 
revenue is the same as the gross turnover. 

Gross winnings’ impact on EBIT
Unibet aims to operate in a cost-efficient 
manner. The objective is to ensure that at 
least 50 per cent of the increase in gross 
winnings revenues improves EBIT. For 2005, 
gross winnings were GBP 43.5 million, an 
increase of GBP 18.8 million on 2004. EBIT 
grew from GBP 11.9 million in 2004 to GBP 
19.9 million in 2005.
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Organisation and history  

“Dreams are meant to come true”
In 1970, poker was not played in the little town 
of Sala in the Swedish county of Västmanland. 
The Internet did not exist, and there were no 
mobile telephones. But there was Anders 
Ström. And in that place a dream was born.
 In his early years Anders had a passion for 
mathematics and statistics. He was fascinated 
by logic, and the possibility of calculating life. 
Spurred on by a burning interest in sport, he 
hatched the idea of bringing together the best 
things in life. And dreams are meant to come true.
 Anders set up Unibet in 1997 and the 
year after he acquired a licence to conduct 
gambling activities in the UK. 
 Telephone betting was launched in time 
for the 1998 World Cup. France won the 
tournament final by 3–0 versus the favourite 
Brazil. Later, online gambling was introduced. 
 Today, Unibet’s website is used by punters 
in over 100 countries. The foundation is 
pan-European but the head office is still in 
Wimbledon. And the employees still have 
a burning interest in sport, gambling and 
excitement on a sound playing field.

 97

The first company in the Unibet 
Group is formed. The Unibet.com
address was first registered on  
12 November.

      98

Unibet receives a licence to 
conduct gambling activities in 
the United Kingdom. The  
company opens an office in 
London and initiates activities as 
a gambling operator by offering 
telephone betting.

   99

A website with two language 
versions, English and Swedish, 
is launched.

    00

Unibet Group Plc is formed. 
Unibet International receives 
a licence and opens an office 
in Malta.

  01

Unibet launches a new website 
with 12 language versions.  
The company has customers in 
50 countries.

“By players, for players” 

Sports Betting is also split across risk management, which involves monitoring the risk in the company’s sports 
book with the use of sophisticated IT systems and a detailed risk manual, and odds compilation, i.e. the setting 
of odds on matches, leagues and other events. The Marketing department works on the company’s overall 
marketing strategy. Local activities are organised by the marketing managers for Unibet’s key markets. IT 
handles development and support for all IT tools. Finance handles bookkeeping, accounting and finance, and 
liquidity management, and Business Development focuses on the development of new products and markets. 

Organisational structure

MarketingSports Betting IT Finance Business
Development

CEO
Petter Nylander

Odds Compiling

Risk 
Management

CRM & Analysis

Marketing

IT Projects

Development

Support

Investor 
Relations

Finance

Treasury

Security 
& Fraud

Business
Development

Administration

Event
Schedulers

Deputy CEO 
Didier Dewyn

Products

Customer
Service

Legal
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Organisation
Unibet has many office locations; the primary 
operating bases are in the UK, Sweden, 
Belgium and Malta.

UK
The head office is in Wimbledon in Greater 
London. In addition to the CEO and the 
various Group management functions, the  
London office is responsible for business 
development, finance and administration, 
marketing, odds compilation and risk 
management, legal services and security 
control. It also offers online gambling services 
to the UK market.

Malta
In Malta, Unibet offers online gambling 
services to the international market, excluding 
the UK. The Malta office provides customer 
service and customer security as well as 
administrative and back office services.

Sweden
The Swedish base provides IT services, and the 
department is responsible for developing and 
maintaining the Group’s entire IT infrastructure.

Belgium
The office in Ghent, Belgium handles odds 
compilation and marketing activities for the 
Benelux region, as well as managing the 
activities of the Unibet Cycling team. 

A responsible organisation
Responsible gaming is about finding new 
ways to offer a secure environment for 
gamblers at all levels: secure transactions, 
an integrity policy and reliable IT systems as 
well as safe gambling. All Unibet employees 
receive training in issues relating to gambling 
habits and how to handle gambling addiction. 
Unibet is seeking accreditation from G4, 
the Global Gaming Guidance Group. G4 
was created by a group of international 
gaming experts with the aim of establishing 
a standard for responsible gaming. The 
objective is to reduce gambling addiction by 
offering an accreditation programme to the 
gaming industry. To become accredited, an 
operator must undertake certain measures, 
such as offering training to staff and allowing 
the customers to set personal limits.
 Unibet is also a member of the European 
Betting Association (EBA), which brings 
together 12 of the leading gaming companies 

in Europe. The Association’s statute specifies 
how the member companies should deal with 
issues such as gambling addiction, illegal 
gambling by minors, gambler privacy and 
money laundering, as well as lobbying the 
legislative and controlling bodies of the EU.

Integration of MrBookmaker.com
In August 2005, Unibet acquired 
MrBookmaker.com, one of the leading sports 
betting sites in France and the Benelux 
region. The acquisition strengthened Unibet’s 
position in France and the Benelux countries 
and gave the company direct access to an 
established marketing organisation and 
customer structure in these countries.
 At the time of acquisition, MrBookmaker.
com had 48 employees, and certain managers 
were promoted to leading positions within 
Unibet. The company had 300,000 registered 
customers, of which 32,000 were active 
sports betting customers.
 Despite a challenging timetable, the 
integration was completed sooner than 
anticipated. From the beginning of 2006, the 
combined business is being marketed solely 
under the Unibet brand.

     02

The company has about 
200,000 registered  
customers from over 80  
different countries.

  03

An updated website with new 
products and live games and 
casino products is launched. 
The company has more 
than 256,000 registered 
customers from over 100 
countries.

  04 

Unibet is listed on the O List 
of the Stockholm Stock  
Exchange. 350,000 
customers from over  
100 countries are playing. 
Poker is launched.

    05

In August, Unibet acquires 
MrBookmaker.com, which  
operates in four European 
countries, primarily France 
and Belgium. Online 
scratchcards, games and 
a mobile platform are 
introduced.

Unibet (Tenue) Ltd
Malta 

Unibet (London) Ltd
UK

Unibet  
Investments Ltd

UK

Firstclear Ltd
UK

Unibet Software
R&D AB
Sweden

Global Leisure 
Partners Ltd

Malta

United Holdings 
(Belize) Ltd

Belize 

Unibet (Int`l) Ltd
Malta 

Unibet Gaming 
CR SA

Costa Rica

Unibet Foundation.
com BVBA

Belgium

ICT Service NV
Belgium

Unibet Group Plc
UK

Unibet Holding Ltd
Malta

Telebet NV
Belgium

MrBookmaker.com 
Ltd

Malta 

E-gaming United Ltd
Belize 

Legal structure
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Market overview  

Market
The worldwide gambling market can be 
divided into online gambling, where bets are 
placed on the Internet or via a mobile phone 
or digital TV, and offline gambling, which  
takes place in a physical location.
 A US research firm, Christiansen Capital 
Advisers LLC, has estimated the value of  
the total gaming market at USD 243 billion  
in 2004 and USD 282 billion in 2009. Out  
of this, the online market is expected to 
account for USD 8.5 billion in 2004 and USD 
23.3 billion in 2009.
 Games are divided into games of skill, 
such as poker, betting on horse racing and 
other sports, and games of luck, such as 
lotteries, bingo and roulette.
 Because of the globalisation of the 
industry and growing Internet penetration, 
companies that have specialised in online 
gambling and offer first-class gambling 
experiences i.e. secure, innovative and reliable, 
with a wide range of products and competitive 

odds, are in an excellent position to expand.
 Thanks to their scalability, online operators 
are able to rapidly and effectively expand into 
new markets.
 Sports betting has been the strongest 
driving force behind the market and now 
accounts for approximately half of the global 
gambling market. Other products, such as 
casino and above all poker, have expanded 
rapidly. Industry pundits believe that these 
types of games of skill are set to grow 
both in terms of the number of games and 
the number of players, as players increase 
their Internet usage and online payment 
transactions. 

Market drivers
A mature gambling culture exists in 
countries where gambling monopolies with 
a dominant position have invested heavily 
in marketing. The gambling monopolies and 

“A wider range of games is drawing in 

new target groups and attracting more 

players and more bets per player.”

Online gambling market forecast by region
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Source: Christiansen Capital Advisers LLC, “eGaming and 
eCommerce Report for PartyGaming Group”, 2 March 2005
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Online gambling market forecast by  
product group

online gambling operators are driving the 
development and launch of new products to 
capture new customer segments. 
Gambling monopolies generally have gross 
margins above the average for deregulated 
markets. This creates opportunities for online 
operators such as Unibet to capture market 
share in these markets by offering competitive 
odds and thereby a higher payout ratio to 
customers. 

Technological change
The ability to provide digital services across 
national boundaries is opening up markets 
which were previously protected by 
state-regulated monopolies or dominant 
national gambling operators. 

New channels for offering games are 
attracting new customer groups and creating 
more gambling opportunities for existing 
customers.

The roll-out of 3G networks will enable 
a growing number of people to access an 
expanding range of games via their mobile 
phones.
 New technology is also creating 
opportunities to develop new games and 
services.

Entertainment
The growth in televised sports events as well 
as general interest in games is increasing the 
demand for online gambling. 

Media coverage of poker tournaments and 
the considerable media interest and coverage 
of poker help to increase the entertainment 
value.

A wider range of games is drawing in new 
target groups and attracting more players and 
more bets per player.
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Growing broadband penetration is also helping 
to enhance the entertainment value, as it 
creates opportunities to develop new services 
with a new dimension of excitement. One 
example is live betting during sports events.

Trust
The wide acceptance of digital forms of 
gambling is a key driver of the market. An 
expanding target group will lead to market 
growth in the long term.
 As the number of players grows, trust will 
increase and the industry as a whole will gain 
wider social acceptance. “Good examples” 
in the form of well-established gambling 
companies and the presence of government 
operators also help to build trust.

Deregulation
The European Court and World Trade 
Organisation operate on the basis of 
guidelines aimed at reducing the number of 
restrictive market structures and monopolies. 
Deregulation is set to continue, and a greater 
liberalisation will open up new markets. 
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Markets
Sweden
In the last three years, the Swedish gambling 
market has seen the launch of new products, 
new versions of existing services and other 
innovations. 

The overall gambling market in Sweden is 
estimated at SEK 40 billion. Of this, online 
gambling accounts for about 20 per cent.

In a recent report the Swedish National 
Gaming Board has estimated that ATG and 
Svenska Spel account for about 2.3 billion 
SEK of online gambling in the Swedish 
market. 
 
Other Nordics
The Nordic gambling markets display certain 
similarities. Each market is dominated by a 
state monopoly, which drives the development 
of the industry. The Nordic countries have a 
well developed gambling culture combined 
with a high Internet penetration. 

Southern Europe
France, Spain and Italy have well-developed 
gambling markets where lottery and toto 
games are widely popular. In France the 
overall gambling market is estimated to be 
worth about EUR 35 billion. Both Internet 
penetration and the use of debit and credit 
cards on the Internet are growing at a very 
fast pace in southern Europe. It is therefore 
reasonable to assume that the online 
gambling market will also develop rapidly in 
these countries.
 

Other
Further deregulation is to be expected, and 
new distribution channels will generate 
continued growth in the European market. 
However, each country has developed its own 
regulatory framework and preferences, which 
means that the market is not homogeneous.
 Further information about the legal 
environment can be found on page 24.
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Bonuses
To create incentives to gamble, Unibet 
has introduced a wide range of bonus 
programmes. Examples include a bonus 
on your next deposit, “get as much as you 
play for” or a quiz where the right answer 
is rewarded with a bonus on your gambling 
account.

Targeted offers 
Unibet has established a practice of making 
customised offers that are targeted to each 
individual customer. 

Better payment solutions
More and faster payment solutions create a 
more flexible gambling environment.

Competitions
For Unibet’s customers excitement is a top 
priority. In 2005, the customers could take 
part in competitions to win a trip to watch 
an NHL match, a trip to Paris to 
see the Prix 
d’Amérique, 
an iPod, 
PlayStations, 
subscriptions 
and other prizes. 

Poker School
Unibet offers eight types of poker. The Unibet 
Poker School, which is available on the 
Internet and in book form, covers the basic 
methods as well as more advanced poker 
strategies.

Unibet’s markets
Gambling is a strictly regulated market. With 
the help of attractive odds and a high payout 

ratio, new forms of betting and innovative 
technology, Unibet has established itself in  
the gambling market.

The company has designated ten key 
markets, each of which has an assigned 
marketing manager with responsibility for 
adapting the offering to local conditions. The 
ten markets are Sweden, Denmark, Norway, 
Finland, the Netherlands, Belgium, France, 
Spain, Italy and Poland.

In February 2006, Unibet added five‘other’ 
markets, where the website is available in 
the players’ own language: Russia, Estonia, 
Greece, Hungary and the Czech Republic. 
The website is also available in English and 
Turkish.

Market phases
Unibet divides the market into three phases: 
mature markets, established markets and new 
markets. 

Different markets require different types of 
marketing. Each stage and market is unique, 
and marketing activities are therefore adapted 
to local conditions.

Unibet has developed a marketing strategy 
which underpins the various stages that a 
market passes through.
 Marketing aimed at established and 

mature markets is managed by a marketing 
manager. 

“Unibet is always interesting”
In mature markets the launch of more 
complex user opportunities, such as live 
betting, a mobile platform and Games are 
the keys to continued growth. Fun and out-
of-the-ordinary themes for odds is another 
way to create novelty value for gamblers. 
Marketing communication comprises events, 

Unibet 2005 – Unibet’s markets

Unibet’s markets  

The Unibet customer
The typical Unibet customer loves sport and 
gambling but his gambling habits also display 
a certain breadth. That is why poker, casino 
and Games are some of Unibet’s most popular 
products.

Customer relations 
CRM, Customer Relationship Management, is 
about taking good care of customers, meeting 
their needs and creating a close customer 
relationship. Unibet uses two main channels  
to build this relationship:

– The Unibet website
The largest contact surface with the 
customers is the website, which is now 
available in 17 language versions. The 
ambition is that it should be easy to find what 
you are looking for and that the site should 
inspire the visitor to place bets. 
 The website is continuously updated with 
local and global campaigns.

– E-mail
Communication with customers is mainly via 
e-mail. Unibet’s e-mails contain gambling tips 
and sports news and are customised based on 
the customer’s language and interests.

Strategies for customer loyalty
The first five months are crucial in determining 
whether a new customer becomes a loyal 
gambler. Attractive odds, interesting and 
out-of-the-ordinary betting opportunities, a 
one-stop shop, new types of gambling, a user-
friendly website, security and customer service 
are the key factors for ensuring customer 
loyalty. In addition, Unibet has an activity 
programme that is aimed at building  
a good customer relationship.
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PR and “good citizen projects” as well as more 
sophisticated CRM initiatives.
 The Nordic market accounts for 74 per 
cent of Unibet’s gross winnings. It is therefore 
also an ideal test market for new products and 
services. 
 
“Find more Unibet experiences”
In established markets continued growth is 
dependent on the ability to increase betting. 
Marketing mainly comprises advertising, an 
Internet presence, PR, events, sponsorship 
and affiliate programmes. A physical presence 
is also important in these markets. In the 
central European market, sponsorship of the 
Unibet cycling team is an important tool for 
increasing the visibility of the company and 
getting close to the customers. 

“What does Unibet represent?”
In new markets Unibet focuses on 
establishing the brand as the natural choice 
for gambling. The main vehicles are affiliate 
programmes, PR and Internet advertising. 

Internet usage (% of population)

Sweden 74.9
Norway 67.8
Denmark 69.4
Finland 62.5
The Netherlands 65.9
Belgium 48.7
France 43.0
Spain 38.7
Italy 48.8
Poland 27.8
Germany 59.0
Russia 16.5
Estonia 50.0
Romania 23.2
Greece 33.7
Hungary 30.3
The Czech Republic 47.0
Croatia 29.2
Portugal 58.0

Source: Internet World Stats, 31 December 2005. 

Marketing activities
Opportunities to market the Unibet brand and 
products vary from one market to another. The 
interpretation of the law changes over time 
and differs from one country to another. 
 Unibet acts swiftly to exploit any 
new opportunities to acquire customers. 
The company also seeks to create new 
opportunities. One example of this is Unibet’s 

initiative for “Pokermiljonen” (Poker Million), a 
TV programme produced in partnership with 
Sweden’s TV4. The programme drew more 
than 2.7 million viewers and attracted a lot of 
attention in Swedish newspapers. It also led to 
the creation of new poker sites providing news 
and tips on how to play. 
 Unibet measures the effectiveness of 
campaigns on a regular basis and conducts 
brand surveys in several countries. Other 
monitoring activities include competitor 
analyses and surveys of customer attitudes 
towards the gaming market.

The brand
All communication with Unibet’s customers 
– existing and future – is aimed at 
strengthening the values associated with the 
Unibet brand. 

In the Nordic countries Unibet is a well 
known brand. Following the acquisition of 
MrBookmaker.com, the company has also 
strengthened its position in Central Europe.

For an established online gambling 
operator being perceived as a secure and 
reliable partner is crucial to the growth of the 
business.

To create a respected and leading brand on 
the online gambling market, Unibet should be 
perceived as:
l Entertaining
l Innovative
l User-friendly
l Secure
l Trustworthy
l Reliable

Entertaining and Innovative
Gambling is an entertaining leisure-time 
activity that should be fun and appealing. By 
developing its existing products and creating 
new forms of gambling and by offering 
attractive odds, Unibet will remain one of the 
leading providers of gambling entertainment.

User-friendly
No specific technological expertise is required 
to use Unibet’s products. The website and 
other channels should stimulate an interest 
and be easy to understand and follow.

Secure
Communications and payment transactions 
are protected against intrusion and encrypted 
according to best practice among the major 
credit card companies. All IT systems are 
duplicated. Unibet is seeking accreditation 

from G4, the Global Gaming Guidance Group, 
and is a member of EBA, the European 
Betting Association.

Trustworthy
Under Unibet’s privacy policy, no personal 
information may be sold to outside parties. 
Customer service is provided round the clock, 
every day of the year. During most hours of 
the day, multilingual staff are available to 
assist customers. Unibet has a strict age 
limit. No customers under the age of 18 are 
accepted.

Reliable
Secure payment procedures, reliable betting 
and dependable odds make Unibet a reliable 
gambling operator.

The Unibet cycling team
In central and southern Europe cycling is the 
second most popular sport after football. In 
Autumn 2005, Unibet decided to take over 
the sponsorship of MrBookmaker.com’s 
cycling team, which as of 2006 is called the 
“Unibet cycling team”. The team comprises 24 
professional cyclists and 16 amateur cyclists 
from nine different nationalities.
 The team was presented in January, and 
cycling enthusiasts will be able to follow their 
progress in the many races in which the team 
will be competing in 2006 at
 www.unibetcycling.com. 

The races are generally well-covered and 
viewers will be able to follow the team. The 
contract with the team runs until 2007.
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TRIXX scratchcards

Unibet’s online scratchcard, Trixx, offers a two in five chance of 
winning, which is higher than for many other scratchcards. Each 
month, Unibet creates more than 500,000 cards, which remain in 
the pot until they are randomly distributed to those who buy them. 
Trixx is thus a risk-free product for Unibet.

Trixx was launched in Sweden in July and on the Norwegian 
and Danish markets in October. Since year end, the scratchcards 
have been available in all Unibet markets. In 2005, Unibet sold 
more than 1.3 million Trixx cards. 

Lotteries are a type of gambling product that attracts Unibet’s 
new target group of females.

Unibet actively studies new research and 
regulatory requirements and uses such 
knowledge to create a safe playing-field. 

Unibet is seeking accreditation from the 
Global Gaming Guidance Group (G4), and the 
company is also a member of the European 
Betting Association (EBA), which brings 
together the 12 leading gaming companies in 
Europe. In its statutes EBA provides detailed 
instructions on how to handle gambling 
addiction, monitor the 18-year age limit, 
protect gamblers’ privacy and prevent money 
laundering.

Legal situation
The gambling industry is strictly regulated. 
Generally speaking, public authorities in differ-
ent jurisdictions have chosen to either ban 
or limit the gambling market by introducing a 
monopoly or permitting gambling under licence 
in a way that makes it possible to regulate and 
tax the activity.
 Unibet’s gambling business is conducted 
under a “Remote Gaming Licence” in Malta 
and a “Bookmaker’s Permit” in the United 
Kingdom. 

In contrast with the protectionist measures 
taken in certain European countries, the 
UK government has moved towards a 
liberalisation of the market combined with 
stricter controls over the operators.

Internet usage has increased tremendously 
in the last five to ten years, but in many 

Casino

Unibet offers 25 different types of casino products, including 
Roulette, Black Jack, Caribbean Stud, Baccarat, video poker and 
one-armed bandits. The casino also organises tournaments in the 
various games.

Gambling on casino products is relatively evenly distributed 
across the year, which helps to even out seasonal variations.

Products and odds compilation – Unibet 2005

Other non-sports betting

countries the regulatory framework for online 
gambling has not yet been adapted to the new 
environment created by the Internet. Malta’s 
laws regulate online sports betting and casino 
games. The law is based on the corresponding 
law in the UK, but takes account of the 
growth of online gambling, notably in the form 
of rules providing for compulsory reviews of 
licence-holders’ internal control procedures.

For more information, see the chapter 
“Legal Environment” on page 24.

Integrity of gambling products and 
winnings
All sports bets are checked after full time and 
through official sources. For other types of 

gambling Unibet works with leading regulators 
and auditors to ensure that winnings and 
games comply with applicable rules and best 
practice. All games of chance are certified 
by Technical System Testing (TST), an 
independent Canadian testing company. The 
random number generator is inspected by 
the Swedish National Laboratory of Forensic 
Science (SKL). The integrity of Unibet’s poker 
software and games is also frequently verified 
by independent parties. The results of these 
audits are posted in the casino and poker 
lobby under “Payment verified by third party”. 
In addition, iTech Labs Australia has tested  
2 million poker hands in the B2B network and 
established that they “are statistically random 
and the dealings of these cards are fair.”
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Competition  

Overview
Unibet’s main competitors can be divided into 
two categories: de facto monopolies and large 
international gaming companies operating in 
the same markets as Unibet.
 Unibet’s priority markets are countries 
where there exists a strong gambling 
monopoly. In these markets the monopoly has 
helped to educate customers how to play, 
contributing to the emergence of a “gambling 
culture”. 
 As the gambling monopolies normally 
operate with margins above the average for 
gambling companies in deregulated markets, 
there is an opportunity for online operators to 

capture market share by offering competitive 
odds and products.
 But as online gambling catches on, 
competition is stiffening. This is partly because 
gamblers’ expectations are increasing, but 
another reason is that new companies are 
starting up and existing ones are growing at a 
fast pace. 
 In a rapidly growing, maturing and 
increasingly competitive industry, acquiring 
new customers is costly. Having a large and 
diverse customer base is therefore a crucial 
success factor. 

“The creative ability to have better ideas 

than its competitors is the most sustain-

able and the strongest competitive ad-

vantage a company can have.” 
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The approximate number of global commercial online gambling websites

Government-run gambling  
monopolies
The global lottery market is dominated by a 
significant number of government-controlled 
companies. The 136 largest are members of 
the World Lottery Association (WLA). 

Competing online operators
Unibet’s strength is its “one-stop shop” 
business concept, where the ambition is to 
offer gamblers a wide variety of games on 
one and the same site. The company’s main 
competitors are large international gambling 
companies with online services that operate in 
the same markets as Unibet.
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Selected online competitors
         
           
    Gambling  Sports   Lottery/
 Company Incorp. Base Listed licence Main markets betting Poker Casino Bingo/Games

UNIBET 1997 United Kingdom Yes United Kingdom,  Nordics,  Yes Yes Yes Yes
    Malta Europe

BETANDWIN 1997 Austria Yes  Gibraltar,  Continental Europe,  Yes Yes Yes Yes
    Germany Southeast Europe

BETFAIR 1999 United Kingdom No United Kingdom UK market Yes Yes Yes Yes

BETINTERNET 1998 Isle of Man Yes Isle of Man UK market Yes Yes Yes Yes

BLUE SQUARE 1999 United Kingdom Yes United Kingdom UK market Yes Yes Yes Yes

CENTREBET 1992 Australia No Australia,  Australia Yes Yes Yes Yes
    United Kingdom Asia, Nordics

EXPEKT 1999 United Kingdom No United Kingdom,  Nordics,  Yes Yes Yes Yes
    Austria, Malta Southeast Europe, Asia 

LADBROKES 1913 United Kingdom Yes United Kingdom United Kingdom,  Yes Yes Yes Yes
     Ireland, Far East

PADDY POWER 1988 Ireland Yes United Kingdom,  UK market Yes Yes Yes Yes
    Ireland

PARTY GAMING 1997 Gibraltar Yes Gibraltar USA, Europe No Yes Yes Yes

 
SPORTINGBET 1998 United Kingdom Yes United Kingdom USA, Europe Yes Yes Yes Yes
    Austria
    Antigua, Barbuda
    Canada

UK BETTING 2001 United Kingdom Yes United Kingdom UK market Yes Yes Yes Yes

WILLIAM HILL 1934 United Kingdom Yes United Kingdom UK market Yes Yes Yes Yes

Source: Companies’ websites
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Unibet divides its risks into the following 
categories:

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that Unibet will lose 
money on its business due to unfavourable 
outcomes on the events where the Group 
offers odds. The Group has adopted specific 
risk management policies that control the 
maximum risk level for each sport or event 
on which the Group offers odds. The results 
of the most popular teams in major football 
leagues comprise the predominant market 
risk. Through diversification, which is a key 
element of Unibet’s business, the risk is spread 
across a large number of events and sports.
 The heads of odds compilation and risk 
management are responsible for day-to-
day monitoring of Unibet’s market risk. It is 
also their responsibility to advise the odds 
compilers and risk managers on appropriate 
risk levels for certain events. 
 The security officer and the head of 
sports betting jointly assess risk levels for 
individual events as well as from a longer term 
perspective. Independent staff make random 
evaluations of risk limits for the various regions.

Credit risk
All bets and stakes are made through account 
gambling, i.e. the gambler deposits money 
in an account, from which he then draws to 
place bets. No customers are offered credit.
 To achieve the right risk profile, Unibet 
conducts trading with a small number of well-
known companies. These companies have 
a certain level of credit with Unibet and vice 
versa.

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk that the Group will 
lose money as a result of individual mistakes, 
e.g. by an odds compiler. The Group has 
introduced internal procedures to monitor and 
detect mistakes caused by operational error 
or the human factor.

Customer-specific risk
The risk that the Group will lose money on 
customers who are exceptionally successful  
is called customer-specific risk. 
 Unibet has introduced three types of  
customer limits:
l Each event on which the Group offers 

odds has a limit for how much an individual 
customer can win on the event. These limits 
vary depending on the event and can be 
changed over time.

l It is also possible to set a limit for 
combinations of bets. This limit is normally 
higher than for an individual bet.

l Each customer has a personal limit, which 
regulates the maximum amount that can be 
staked in a single bet. 

Employee risk
Unibet’s employees are not allowed to bet 
through Unibet in any way, either directly or 
through a third party.

Technical risks
Unibet’s activities are highly dependent 
on information systems and other types of 
technical risk. Interruptions on the Internet, 
e.g. viruses, intrusion attempts or access 
restrictions due to reduced capacity, have 
an impact on the business. Unibet as well 
as other online gambling providers have 
experienced interruptions to their websites 
caused by unidentified third parties through 

Risk management – Unibet 2005

Risk management  

distributed denial of service (DDoS) attacks. 
These interruptions have caused delays for 
customers seeking to access the website. 
Unibet works actively and continuously to 
minimise the risk of such attacks.
 Secure transmission of confidential 
information over the Internet and the overall 
security of Unibet’s system are crucial to the 
business. The Group uses licensed encryption 
and authentication systems to ensure secure 
transmission of confidential information such 
as credit card numbers.
 The gaming application is business-critical, 
and Unibet has gone to considerable lengths 
to ensure that it is able to handle various types 
of interruption. All servers are duplicated, i.e. if 
one server fails, another will immediately take 
over. 
 Unibet has also created a back-up site 
in the UK, which in the event of a serious 
operational interruption will take over from 
Malta and/or London without losing any 
transactions.

Security team
A team which manually monitors activity 
on the accounts and employs computers 
to monitor the system round the clock is 
tasked with ensuring that Unibet’s website 
remains a secure playing-field. Suspect bets, 
transactions and withdrawals are verified. If 
it is suspected that Unibet’s rules have been 
breached, the account will be closed pending 
an investigation. 

Safe gambling
Unibet offers its punters an opportunity to set 
a personal gambling budget. A customer’s 
current monthly gambling budget can only 
be changed by contacting Unibet’s customer 
service. The gambling budget is set on a 
calendar month basis.
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Treasury management – customer 
deposits
All customers wishing to place a bet with  
Unibet must first register by opening an account 
and making a deposit. Deposits can be made 
by credit or debit card, through a cash deposit 
or via bank transfer at a local branch or using 
an online banking service. Bets can be placed 
as soon as the account has been credited.
 Withdrawals are subject to a strict 
verification system. Withdrawal requests can 
only be satisfied if certain criteria are met and 
confirmation that a deposit has been cleared 
is obtained. In addition, several other checks 
are made to minimise the risk of fraud. 
 Payouts to customers are made via bank 
transfer from one of Unibet’s network of 
banks worldwide, in the currency requested by 
the customer and directly into their nominated 
bank account. The Group has accounts with 
many major banks in the EU.

Fraud and money-laundering
The procedures for opening an account with 
Unibet require detailed information to be 
registered about each customer. The company 
applies a strict age limit and accepts no 
customers under the age of 18. All deposits 
and withdrawals are made through banks and 
Unibet has introduced internal procedures for 
detecting and handling suspect transactions. 

Sensitivity analysis

Factor Percentage change EBIT impact

Gross winnings revenue +/– 1 percent +/– GBP 435,000 

Administrative expenses +/– 1 percent +/– GBP 230,000 

Unibet has appointed a special group which 
focuses on security and fraud-related issues. 
When a deposit exceeds a certain amount or 
when certain limits are exceeded, a warning is 
generated and the group is alerted.

Sensitivity analysis
Unibet’s performance is affected by a number 
of factors. The sensitivity analysis only takes 
into account direct changes. It is likely that 
actual changes in a specific item will also 
affect other items and that estimates made 
by Unibet and other parties on the basis of 
a change of circumstance would also affect 
other items. 

Responsible gambling
Unibet is committed to creating a platform 
for attractive betting at competitive odds. This 
involves creating a safe platform and working 
to reduce the risk of gambling abuse. Training 
customer service staff in how to detect and 
provide help in cases of suspected gambling 
abuse and the option of limiting bets are some 

of the measures introduced by Unibet to 
achieve these objectives.
 Unibet actively studies new research 
and regulatory requirements and uses such 
knowledge to create a safe playing-field. 
  Unibet is seeking accreditation from 
the Global Gaming Guidance Group (G4). 
This places the company under certain 
obligations, e.g. to provide information about 
help organisations, apply a clear policy for 
preventing gambling by minors, limit bets and 
provide training for staff.
 The company is also a member of the 
European Betting Association (EBA), which 
brings together the 12 leading gaming 
companies in Europe. The Association’s 
statutes specify how to deal with issues 
such as gambling addiction, illegal gambling 
by minors, gambler privacy and money 
laundering.
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Organisation
Unibet’s bookmaking business is run under 
licences in the United Kingdom and Malta. 
The company has offices in London, Malta, 
Stockholm and, following the acquisition of 
MrBookmaker, in Ghent.

Employees
A fast pace and 24/7 staffing 365 days a 
year can put a lot of pressure on the staff. A 
positive attitude, professionalism and flexibility 

“Interaction, a common vision and a 

shared knowledge platform are the keys 

to a successful organisation.”

Employees  

Employees – Unibet 2005
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are some of the qualities needed to be able to 
make quick decisions in a world where every 
second counts.
 Bets are placed on Unibet’s site round the 
clock. For this reason, Unibet operates a 24-
hour customer service with multi-lingual staff, 
based in Malta. 
 In 2005, Unibet increased its workforce 
by 66 people, or by 61 per cent in percentage 
terms. Out of these, 48 came through the 
acquisition of MrBookmaker. On top of 
that, about 30 contracted consultants were 
working for the company at year end.
 The consultants are mainly specialists 
in odds compilation. Thanks to them, Unibet 
is able to effectively and flexibly handle 
the seasons for the various sports. Using 
consultants is also a way to adapt the 
business and manage growth with a low level 
of financial risk.
 The acquisition of MrBookmaker also 
involved merging two company cultures. 
Taking stock of progress in December, it was 
clear that the integration had proceeded 
faster than expected, largely thanks to the 
enthusiasm and commitment shown by the 
staff in both companies.

Recruitment
Unibet’s relatively low average age reflects 
the fact that the company is operating in a 
young industry. 

The typical Unibet employee is flexible, has 
specialist expertise and an ability to look 
beyond existing boundaries, and is passionate 
about sports and gambling.
 Competition is tough, and because 
online gambling is a new industry there are 
few people with experience in the field. The 
number of online gambling professionals is 
still limited, but may grow as more companies 
take up the competition.
 Unibet has recruited primarily through 
recruitment agencies. The company also 
receives a large number of spontaneous 
applications. Unibet’s own odds compilation, 
maths and statistics tests are a key 
component of the recruitment process.

Low rate of sick leave
Employees with a strong commitment to 
their work coupled with an attractive work 
environment resulted in a low rate of sick 
leave. Sick leave in relation to working time 
was less than 1 per cent in 2005. 

An international environment
Unibet is an international company operating 
in an international market, and our staff 
work in a multi-cultural environment. With 28 
nationalities represented within the Group, 
Unibet is well placed to meet the demands of 
the market. The Group language is English.

Key figures – employees 

 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Average number of employees 139 98 75 64 45

External training cost per employee, GBP 183 126 82 23 67

Salary cost per employee, GBP 25,017 27,376 24,582 20,590 22,928

Gross winnings revenue per employee, GBP 313,058 252,480 173,387 148,188 63,267
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Staff training
Unibet operates in a young industry where 
growth and development are dependent on a 
particular type of expertise. There is practically 
no movement of employees between 
companies in the industry and in certain areas 
there are currently no training opportunities. 
 Unibet invests a lot of time and energy in 
developing internal training programmes. This 
is a crucial success factor, as many positions 
have no equivalent in other industries. One 
initiative is the induction programme that is 
offered to all new Unibet employees. After 
that, employees can continue to build on their 
expertise through the Unibet Education Plan.
 In 2005, the total cost of external staff 
training was GBP 25,000.

“Unibet offers a stimulating  
environment in an area where 
each new step involves breaking 
new ground. The key to the  
process is our staff.” 
Petter Nylander, CEO

A responsible organisation
All Unibet employees receive training in 
issues relating to gambling habits and how to 
handle gambling addiction. 
 Unibet is seeking accreditation from 
G4, the Global Gaming Guidance Group. 
G4 was created by a group of international 
gaming experts with the aim of establishing 
a standard for responsible gaming. The 
objective is to reduce gambling addiction by 
offering an accreditation programme to the 
gaming industry. To become accredited, an 
operator must undertake certain measures, 
such as offering training to staff and allowing 
the customers to set personal limits.
 The company is also a member of the 
European Betting Association (EBA), which 
brings together the 12 leading gaming 
companies in Europe. The Association’s 
statutes specify how to deal with issues 
such as gambling addiction, illegal gambling 
by minors, gambler privacy and money 
laundering.
 Socially responsible enterprise is about 
finding ways to offer a safe playing field for 
Unibet’s gamblers. 

Incentive programme
To attract, retain and motivate qualified staff, 
Unibet has introduced an executive share 
option scheme and performance-related pay 
for certain key positions.

Health and environment
As part of its commitment to ensure an 
attractive work environment, Unibet provides 
access to health and fitness activities for all 
staff. Unibet employees also benefit from 
health insurance. 

Human resources
As Unibet continues to grow, new 
opportunities arise. Unibet’s strength is its 
ability to expand faster than the market and 
grow by developing the company’s internal 
expertise. To make full use of that expertise, 
Unibet will in the first quarter of 2006 create 
a new human resources department. The 
department will promote motivation, creativity 
and well-being while maintaining a shared 
company culture.
 In connection with this a new 
development plan will be presented. A 
staff training programme, expanded use 
of performance systems aimed at giving 
employees a greater stake in the company’s 
financial and strategic development and the 
creation of other bonus systems to encourage 
new product development are some of the key 
elements of the plan.
 Another objective is to ensure that Unibet 
has a workplace that can attract skilled staff 
and help to retain existing staff.

An attractive workplace is one that offers 
opportunities for development and where 
every idea that can help to improve and renew 
the business is valued and taken into account. 

Communication
Interaction, a common vision and a shared 
knowledge platform are the keys to a 
successful organisation with shared values. 
A company with offices in several countries 
and employees in different parts of Europe 
needs a well functioning structure for 
internal communication. Unibet’s internal 
communication channels comprise a well 
developed Intranet. 

Integration with MrBookmaker
In August 2005, MrBookmaker was 
consolidated into the Unibet Group.
 The acquisition creates major advantages 
in terms of product range and new markets. 
The integration was completed faster than 
scheduled. Partly, this was because the 
companies shared a similar culture.
 Several key individuals from MrBookmaker 
have been given global responsibilities in the 
Unibet Group. This has helped to accelerate 
the integration process.
 As of January 2006, there is only one 
brand – Unibet.
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General
Unibet’s business, namely sports betting and 
other gaming and gambling services, may 
be subject to a number of restrictions in the 
markets where Unibet has a commercial 
interest and focus. The vast majority of all 
Unibet’s markets are located within the 
European Union. As Unibet is a duly licensed 
and established company in a number of 
Member States of the European Union, 
the principles of free movement of goods, 
right to establishment and free provision 
and promotion of services within the 
European Union should govern and prevail 
over unjustified restrictions in any of the 
markets in which its operates. Any restriction 
would normally contradict these principles, 
particularly when there is not a consistent 
gaming policy in the particular market. 

However, the legislative body of the EU has 
granted individual Member States a certain 
amount of discretion to exercise restrictions, 
subject to such restrictions fulfilling, in 
general, an aim to protect public health and 
public policy. In contrast, restrictions may not 
be exercised in a discriminatory way, nor in 
a disproportionate manner, and finally, nor 
simply to increase the public purse by banning 
any type of foreign competition. 

In November 2003, the European Court of 
Justice (“ECJ”), issued a landmark judgement 
with relevance to the aforementioned, 
namely the Gambelli case. This was later 
supported by the decision in the Lindman 
case. Even though the ECJ confirmed that 
Member States have a right to impose 
national restrictions, when imposing or 
enforcing the latter, they must prove 
sufficiently with evidence that (i) their gaming 

policy is consistent, (ii) there is a clear and 
present danger to public order, and (iii) that 
the objective pursued, e.g. protection of 
consumers, cannot be reached by imposing 
less restrictive measures.

It is the interpretation of private industry 
that these two ECJ judgements are to be 
regarded as authoritative guidelines for 
domestic courts when assessing whether 
restrictions in the area in question are 
correctly enforced or not. If the latter should 
be the finding of a domestic court, then, in 
consequence, the domestic legislation is in 
breach of superior European law. 

It is too early to determine what the final 
outcome will be in different Member States 
when this specific legislation is tried in the 
light of the aforementioned cases. Also, one 
should bear in mind that legislation in this 
area can be tried in three ways, namely under 
public, civil, and, or, criminal law – in principle, 
each case may also become subject to three 
levels of court hierarchy, that may take a 
substantial number of years to conclude. 
Furthermore, each case may trigger numerous 
court proceedings dealing with claims for 
injunctions, interim relief and the like. 

Unibet’s view from the perspective of the 
legal environment post- Gambelli regarding 
certain markets with a particular interest for 
Unibet, may be summarised as follows.

Sweden
In October 2004, the Supreme Administrative 
Court issued two judgements which were 
identical in substance, in respect of breaches 
of the relevant laws on the promotion of foreign 
gambling activities. The rulings of the court 
were in favour of the Swedish Government, i.e. 

the Swedish de facto monopoly system. 
 However, the judgements have attracted 
a certain amount of criticism from the legal 
community for not having fully assessed 
and taken into account all the relevant facts 
and circumstances in the cases and in the 
Swedish gambling market, nor properly 
adopted the guidelines of the recent landmark 
ECJ judgement, Gambelli, and disregarded the 
Lindman-case. Nevertheless, the judgements 
currently represent a precedent under public 
law and an influence on lower courts in cases 
tried under civil or criminal law. 

In May 2004 the Swedish Government 
appointed a commission to investigate 
whether or not the Swedish Lottery legislation 
was in compliance with European law. In 
January 2006 the commission presented 
its report and concluded that it was doubtful 
whether the Swedish Lottery legislation 
is in conformity with European law and, in 
particular, that the decision in November 2005 
to grant the state-owned gambling company 
AB Svenska Spel permission to organise 
poker over the Internet may well constitute a 
transgression in this respect. 

It is the strong opinion of Unibet that the 
precedent of the Supreme Administrative 
Court will become obsolete. This can be 
brought about either through legislation or 
through new cases tried under administrative, 
civil or criminal law, or by actions or influence 
from different bodies of the European Union. 
The fact that the EC Commission is presently 
preparing an infringement action against 
the Swedish de facto monopoly on gaming 
machines may already verify the latter. 
 Regardless of the findings of the Supreme 
Administrative Court, it is the strong opinion of 

Legal Environment  
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Unibet that its virtual presence in the Swedish 
market does not breach Swedish laws. 

In November 2003, Unibet filed a lawsuit 
against the Swedish Government for, in 
principle, the latter violating Unibet’s rights 
under European law. The District Court is 
for the time being considering if the court 
should ask the ECJ for a preliminary ruling 
on certain substantive issues. If the District 
Court declines this, the court will probably 
hear the case during the second half of 2006. 
Unibet’s claim for interim relief in conjunction 
with the lawsuit and other procedural issues is 
awaiting a decision in the Swedish Supreme 
Court. The Supreme Court has asked the ECJ 
for a preliminary ruling which will possibly be 
passed during 2006. 

Finland
The Supreme Court has issued a judgement 
in favour of the current de facto monopoly. 
Although the case dealt with a company 
located in Finland (Åland Islands), European 
law was actually taken into consideration 
in assessing the case. The Supreme Court 
stated that there is no reason to question 
the existing appraisal of the ECJ made in the 
Läärä case, according to which a lottery permit 
may be given to only one public institution 
taking into account the objectives of public 
interest. No explicit reference was, however, 
made to the November 2003 Gambelli and 
Lindman requirements.

Unibet has one employee in Finland who is 
subject to a preliminary investigation regarding 
a suspected lottery offence. The Central 
Criminal Police of Finland has forwarded the 
case to the State Prosecutor, who has asked 
the Central Criminal Police to supplement 
the preliminary investigation. The Company’s 
employee has already answered the additional 
police questions. It is difficult to estimate 
when the case will be forwarded to the court 
by the prosecutor, or, when the court hearings 
will take place.

Denmark 
No case law has been brought into existence 
relating to laws on gambling, since the 
Gambelli case.

Unibet has one consultant in Denmark who 
has been charged in relation to a breach of 
the relevant laws on gambling. The case is 
pending, due to the consideration being given 
by the Danish Prosecution Service, in light of 
the Gambelli case. 

Norway
Due to the EEA agreement, the Norwegian 
legal monopoly on gaming and gambling is 
subject to similar scrutiny as Member States 
of the European Union. The situation in 
Norway is under a substantial challenge, as 
the EFTA Surveillance Authority has initiated 
legal proceedings against the Norwegian 
Government in relation to the monopoly on 
gaming machines. Furthermore, the City 
Court and the Appeal Court of Oslo have 
issued a judgement and an order respectively, 
effectively making the Norwegian monopoly 
system on gaming machines illegal. The 
City Court’s judgment was overturned on 
appeal, and appeals from private enterprises 
are pending before the Supreme Court. 
These appeals, however, remain outstanding 
awaiting the outcome of the proceedings 
initiated by the EFTA Surveillance Authority. 
In addition, a private operator has initiated 
proceedings against the State, challenging the 
traditional monopoly for gaming in Norway as 
well as the ban on the marketing of foreign 
internet games. In this case, the City Court 
has decided to refer questions to the EFTA 
Court. Thus, the EFTA Court will eventually 
hand down an advisory opinion in this case. 
The case of the private operator will be 
decided before the case initiated by the EFTA 
Surveillance Authority, and an advisory opinion 
will possibly be handed down during the 
second half of 2006.

Following the aforementioned, Unibet 
strongly believes it has well-founded 
reasons in assuming that restrictions on the 
promotion of Unibet’s services are very likely 
to be deemed not to be in compliance with 
governing European laws. 

Italy 
Italy, already the object of many EU 
procedures in the field of betting and 
gambling services, has recently adopted a 
law and decree that prevents Italian residents 
from accessing gambling service platforms 
of European service providers, duly licensed 
and established in their respective countries 
of origin.

Section 535 of the Italian 2006 Finance 
Act, imposed an obligation on all Italian 
Internet Service Providers (ISP’s) to block 
access to foreign gambling websites. Contrary 
to the legal framework governing ISP’s 
(namely Directive 2000/31/EC, article 15), 
Italian ISP’s are obliged to block access to the 
information services of EU-established service 
providers. 

Unibet has already lodged a complaint at the 
European Commission against this draconian 
censorship measure, and will continue at all 
possible levels its commitment to establish a 
liberal, but regulated, market.

Germany
A considerable amount of case law has 
come into existence since the Gambelli case. 
However, the findings from different courts 
sometimes seem to contradict each other. 
There have been several recent court cases 
involving operators including Unibet, where 
the initial findings were against the operators. 
For the time being, Unibet will pursue its 
legal proceedings against a German operator 
holding a license in Germany. 

In addition, Unibet has applied for licences 
in all 16 German federal states and the 
administrative (court) proceedings are still 
pending.

On 28 March 2006, the German Federal 
Constitutional Court ruled that the current 
German legal situation regarding sports bets 
and games of chance is unconstitutional as it 
does not effectively restrict the known issues 
arising from games of chance.

The Netherlands
In October 2005, De Lotto (state monopoly 
in the Netherlands) served a writ on a Unibet 
group subsidiary, requesting the company to 
appear before the President of the lower court 
of Arnhem, the same court that has awarded 
judgements against other private operators.

In the summary proceedings in November 
2005, the court ordered the company to stop 
the provision and promotion of all gambling 
services to Dutch residents, or pay a fine of 
10,000 Euros per day up to a maximum of 
1 million Euros.

Unibet has appealed against the court’s 
judgement. Although the judgement has been 
notified, the penalties have not been enforced, 
partly because the company has brought 
actions against De Lotto before courts in both 
Holland and Malta.

In light of the existing case law of the 
Arnhem Court of Appeal, a judgement 
given by the Court of Breda in Holland 
(contradicting the Arnhem court judgement), 
the European Commission’s comments on 
the inconsistency of Dutch gaming policy with 
EU judgements, and the recent ruling of the 
German Federal Constitutional Court, Unibet’s 
initial assessment of the chances of success 
in the appeal procedure are positive.
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The Share  

Shares and share capital 
The company’s issued share capital comprises 28,125,092 ordinary 
shares each with a par value of GBP 0.005. All ordinary shares carry 
equal voting rights and rights to share in the assets and profits of the 
Group.

Listing of Swedish Depositary Receipts
Unibet Group plc’s Swedish Depositary Receipts (SDRs) were listed on 
the O-list of the Stockholm Stock Exchange (Stockholmsbörsen) on 8 
June 2004. As of 1 January 2005, the SDRs have been included in the 
Attract 40 segment of the O-list.
 The trading symbol is UNIB. A trading unit is 50 SDRs and the 
ISIN code is SE 0001 192485.
 Unibet has a liquidity guarantee agreement with Hagströmer & 
Qviberg Fondkommission AB.

Share split and new issue 2005
At the Annual General Meeting on 26 April 2005 shareholder approval 
was given for a 4 to 1 share split. The first trading day after the split 
was 1 June 2005. At an Extraordinary General Meeting held on  
12 September 2005 the shareholders approved the issue of 2.4 million 
new shares in part payment for the acquisition of Global Leisure  
Partners Ltd, the parent company of MrBookmaker.com.

Share price performance
Unibet’s depositary receipts performed well in 2005, ending the year 
at SEK 161. The lowest price during the year was SEK 73 and the 
highest was SEK 232.
 As at 31 December 2005, Unibet Group plc had a market 
capitalisation of SEK 4.5 billion.

Unibets share price movement, 1 June 2004 – 21 March  2006

Trading volumes
In 2005, 22.9 million SDRs in Unibet Group, representing a total value 
of SEK 6,444.6 million, changed hands.
On an average trading day, more than 90,000 SDRs, representing a 
value of SEK 25.5 million, were traded.

Dividend policy
It is the intention of the Board of Directors that the company should 
pay a dividend of approximately 50 per cent of the Group’s net income 
after tax to the shareholders, provided that other financial objectives 
are met and an appropriate capital structure is maintained. All SDRs 
entitle the holder to the same dividend rights as holders of ordinary 
shares.

Proposed dividend
The Board proposes a dividend of SEK 2.25 (2.25) per share/SDR for 
the 2005 financial year.

Shareholders ownership data
On 28 February 2006, Unibet Group had 3,402 holders of SDRs. 

On 21 March 2006, the Group’s eight largest owners represented 
60.0 per cent of the capital and votes, as shown below.

  Share of 
 Number of sharecapital/ Accumu- 
Shareholder shares/SDRs votes, % lated, %

Anders Ström  5,603,356 19.9 19.9

Fidelity 3,837,441 13.6 33.5

Capital Group 2,536,000 9.0 42.5

Peter Lindell  1,625,614 5.8 48.3

Staffan Persson  1,563,917 5.6 53.9

Robur 832,075 3.0 56.9

Skandia Liv 477,050 1.7 58.6

Living Capital Ltd/Jersey Ltd 391,324 1.4 60.0

Other 11, 258,315 40.0 100.0

Total 28,125,092 100.0 

Source: VPC AB
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Ownership distribution on 28 February 2006
 Number of Number of Share capital/ 
Holding shareholders shares/SDRs votes (%)

1–500 2,750 406,850 1.4

501–1,000 303 257,773 0.9

1,001–10,000 228 723,687 2.6

10,001– 250,000 105 5,926,649 21.1

250,001– 16 20,810,133 74.0

Total 3,402 28,125,092 100

Source: VPC AB
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Dialogue with capital markets
Unibet’s Investor Relations policy focuses on conducting a dialogue 
with representatives from the capital markets, aimed at increasing  
interest in Unibet’s shares/SDRs among existing and potential  
investors by providing relevant, up-to-date and timely information.
Investors and capital market players should be provided with clear 
information about the company’s activities with the aim of increasing 
shareholder value. Unibet strives to ensure good access to such 
information for capital markets, notably through presentations in  
Stockholm and London.

On Unibet’s website, www.unibetgroupplc.com, investors can find up-to-
date information about the Group’s financial performance, stock market 
data, a financial calendar, company information and other important 
data.
Unibet arranges the following capital market activities:
l  Quarterly meetings and teleconferences for analysts, investors and 

financial media.
l Financial hearings in Stockholm.
l Participation in industry seminars and conferences.

Share capital development
The development of the company’s share capital is shown in the following table:
    Change in Total Par value Increase in 
   Issue no.  no. per share share capital Share capital 
Transaction Year price ordinary shares ordinary shares (GBP)  (GBP)  (GBP)

Incorporation 2000 – 2 2 0.01 – 0.02

Share exchange 2000 – 10,204,200 10,204,202 0.01 102,042 102,042.02

Private placement 2001 2.45 268,994 10,473,196 0.01 2,689.94 104,731.96

Rights issue 2002 1.55 645,000 11,118,196 0.01 6,450 111,181.96

1:2 reverse split 2004 – –5,559,098 5,559,098 0.02 – 111,181.96

New issue 2004 10.49 703,000 6,262,798 0.02 14,074 125,255.96

Exercise of options 2004 5.48 5,000 6,267,798 0.02 100 125,355.96

Exercise of options 2004 7.06 2,500 6,270,298 0.02 50 125,405.96

Exercise of options 2005 4.02 159,975 6,430,273 0.02 3,199.50 128,605.46

Exercise of options 2005 5.48 1,000 6,431,273 0.02 20 128,625.46

Split 4:1  2005 – 19,293,819 25,725,092 0.005 – 128,625.46

New issue 2005 – 2,400,000 28,125,092 0.005 12,000 140,625.46

Ownership structure

Source: VPC, sorted after holdings as at 28 February 2006.

ägare

Legal entities 95%

Natural Persons 5%
Of whom 4% men
                1% women

Foreign owners 81%

Swedish owners 19%

Juridiska personer 95%

Fysiska personer 5%
varav 4% män
         1% kvinnor

Utländska ägare 81%

Svenska ägare 19%

ägare

Legal entities 95%

Natural Persons 5%
Of whom 4% men
                1% women

Foreign owners 81%

Swedish owners 19%

Juridiska personer 95%

Fysiska personer 5%
varav 4% män
         1% kvinnor

Utländska ägare 81%

Svenska ägare 19%

Ownership structure

Swedish financial institutions 12%

Other Swedish financial entities 1%

Other Swedish legal entities 2%

Non-Swedish owners 81%

Swedish natural persons 4%

Total 100%

Source: VPC, sorted after holdings as at 28 February 2006. 

Geographical ownership

Source: VPC, sorted after holdings as at 28 February 2006.

Five year summary
  2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Equity per share, GBP 2.155 0.754 0.217 0.098 0.005

Equity per share after full dilution, GBP 2.135 0.732 0.207 0.092 0.004

Earnings per share, GBP 0.523 0.370 0.130 0.051 –0.075

Earnings per share after full dilution, GBP 0.515 0.359 0.123 0.048 –0.072

Operating margin, % 45.7 48.2 29.0 12.5 -53.7

Cashflow per share, GBP –0.07 0.83 0.17 0.13 0.06

Dividend per share, SEK 2.251 2.25 – – –

Return on total capital, % 18.9 41.6 44.8 23.3 n/a

Equity/assets ratio, % 53.6 58.9 46.6 33.7 2.6

Number of shares at year end 28,125,092 25,081,192  22,236,392  22,236,392   20,946,392 

Fully diluted number of shares at year end 28,394,747 25,841,092 23,333,969  23,672,701 21,953,969 

Average number of shares 26,223,857 23,890,576 22,236,392   21,063,022  20,946,392 

Average number of fully diluted shares 26,640,068  24,676,613 23,333,969  22,499,331 21,953,969 

1 Proposed dividend

The above figures have been re-stated to reflect the changes in nominal value of the share.
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Principal activities
Unibet is an online gambling business, with over 919,000 registered 
customers worldwide as at 31 December 2005 and is one of the 
largest privately-owned, publicly-quoted online gambling operators in 
the European market.
The Internet is the main distribution channel for Unibet’s products. The 
Group offers a comprehensive range of online gambling products, such 
as sports betting, live betting, soft games, online casino and poker 
products, through the Group’s website, www.unibet.com. The customer 
base spans more than 100 countries. 
On average, Unibet handles over 100,000 transactions every day 
(including bets, deposits and withdrawals) and has between 1,000–2,000 
offerings on major international and local sporting events every day. 
The Group has its headquarters in London where the holding company 
is incorporated. Also, in the UK the UK operating subsidiary provides 
gambling services directed to customers mainly domiciled in the 
UK. The UK operating subsidiary also provides the Group with odds 
compilation, risk management, financial and administrative support as 
well as business development and marketing activities. The Group also 
has subsidiaries in Malta, Sweden, Costa Rica and Belgium. Online 
gambling services for the international market are offered through 
Malta and Costa Rica. The call centre is located in Malta, from where 
event scheduling, treasury and back office services are provided for 
the Group. Other subsidiaries provide further support services in the 
form of IT development and maintenance and marketing activities, in 
particular the running of the Unibet.com cycling team. 
The subsidiaries and associated undertakings which affect the results 
and net assets of the Group in the year are listed in note 13 to the 
financial statements.

Results and dividends
The consolidated income statement is set out on page 35 and shows 
the result for the year. The profit after tax was GBP 13,719  
(2004: 8,851) million. The Board of Directors proposes a dividend of 
SEK 2.25 per ordinary share to be paid to holders of ordinary shares 
and SDRs. This is the same level as the dividend approved last year 
at the Annual General Meeting on 26 April 2005, of SEK 9 per share, 
prior to the share split, which was paid during 2005.

Business review 
Significant events during the year 2005
With effect from 1 January 2005, Unibet Group plc was moved up to 
the Attract40 segment on Stockholmsbörsen, the Stockholm Stock 
Exchange.
On 25 January 2005, Unibet’s CEO, Pontus Lesse, announced his 
wish to leave his position by the end of 2005. Recruitment of a new 
CEO began immediately. 
On 22 March 2005, Unibet launched a new mobile gambling platform. 
The solution works on more than 90 per cent of all mobile handsets in 
the market. 
During April 2005, Unibet completed the production of a TV-format 
poker tournament named Pokermiljonen. The show was broadcast on 
various Swedish TV channels. 
At the AGM held on 26 April 2005, Peter Lindell, Johan Lindgren, 
Peter Boggs, Henrik Tjärnström and Anders Ström were re-elected 
as directors of the Company. Daniel Johannesson was elected as a 
new director of the Company. Anders Ström was elected as the new 
Chairman of the Board. All other resolutions as detailed in the Notice 

of the AGM were passed at the AGM.
In April 2005, Unibet signed an agreement with G4, the Global Gaming 
Guidance Group, agreeing to comply with their Code of Practice in 
relation to responsible gambling.
On 24 May 2005, Unibet announced Petter Nylander as the new CEO 
for the Group, succeeding Pontus Lesse. The formal change took place 
on 1 August 2005.
A share split of 4 for every 1 ordinary share took effect from 1 June 
2005. 
On 18 July 2005, a new online scratchcard product called Trixx was 
launched in the Swedish market. Versions for other markets have since 
been developed. Trixx is a fixed win scratchcard, and Unibet has a 
highly competitive payout ratio compared to some competitors. 
The product is risk-free unlike the sports book. 
On 19 August 2005, Unibet announced that it had acquired 100 per 
cent of Global Leisure Partners Limited, the parent company of the 
sports betting company MrBookmaker.com. The MrBookmaker Group 
(Global Leisure Partners Limited and its subsidiaries) is consolidated in 
Unibet’s results with effect from that date. More details can be found 
in note 21.
On 12 September 2005 an Extraordinary General Meeting approved 
the issue of 2,400,000 new ordinary shares of 0.5p each. This was 
in part consideration for the acquisition of the entire share capital of 
Global Leisure Partners Limited, parent company of MrBookmaker.com. 
The number of ordinary shares in issue following 12 September 2005 
was 28,125,092 each with a par value of 0.5p.
In October 2005, the lottery scratchcard product Trixx was released 
in Norway and Denmark. During the first four days, over 49,000 Trixx 
cards were sold in Norway and over 37,000 in Denmark. In January 
2006 Trixx was launched on all other markets.
On 5 October 2005, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were appointed 
auditors of Unibet Group plc. 
On 21 October 2005, the mobile platform was launched in Finnish,  
Italian and English language versions. 
In December 2005, Unibet soft games were launched. Soft games 
have been one of MrBookmaker’s successful products.
In December 2005, Unibet secured loan facilities with the Royal Bank 
of Scotland plc, which were not drawn down at the year end. These 
facilities comprise GBP 22.25 million of term loan, principally to re-
finance the loan notes arising on the MrBookmaker Group acquisition 
at favourable rates, and a revolving credit facility of GBP 7.75 million. 
The facilities are all repayable within 3 years.
On 31 December 2005, the migration of the MrBookmaker business 
onto Unibet’s platform was finalised successfully.
Unibet has decided to sponsor the former MrBookmaker.com cycling 
team and has renamed it the Unibet.com cycling team. Unibet will 
invest around 5.2 million Euros in the team in 2006 with an option 
to continue for an additional two years. The sponsorship will develop 
awareness of the Unibet brand in southern Europe where cycling is an 
extremely popular sport.

Significant events after the year end
On 15 February 2006, Unibet sold its entire holding (23 per cent) of 
ordinary shares in B2B Poker (Sweden) AB, together with certain other 
rights and warrants, to 24hPoker AB. The proceeds totalled SEK 15 
million of which SEK 10 million was payable on the same day and the 
remainder is payable on 1 September 2006.
On 31 January 2006, the Unibet cycling team won d’Ouverture de 
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Directors’ report
The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group, together with the audited 
financial statements and auditors’ report, for the year ended 31 December 2005.
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Marseillaise in France which is the opening race of the European 2006 
cycling season.
On 1 February 2006, the website was launched in five new languages: 
Russian, Estonian, Hungarian, Greek and Czech.

Future developments
The Directors are confident in the Group’s trading and financial 
prospects for the forthcoming financial year.

Directors and their interests
The following Directors held office during the year and subsequently, 
unless otherwise stated:
Anders Ström Executive Chairman
Peter Boggs Non Executive
Daniel Johannesson Non Executive (appointed 26 April 2005)
Peter Lindell Non Executive
Johan Lindgren Non Executive
Henrik Tjärnström Non Executive
Mats Sundström Non Executive (resigned 26 April 2005)
Anders Ström, Peter Boggs, Daniel Johannesson, Peter Lindell and 
Henrik Tjärnström will seek re-election at the forthcoming AGM. The 
interests of the Directors are shown on pages 26 and 30. 

Payment of suppliers
It is the Group and the Company’s policy to agree appropriate terms 
and conditions for its transactions with suppliers by means ranging 
from standard written terms to individually negotiated contracts. 
Payments are normally made in accordance with these terms and 
conditions. At the year end there were 38 days (2004: 38 days) 
purchases in trade creditors for the Group, whilst the parent company 
had no creditor days.

Research and development
The Group capitalises certain expenditure when it relates to the 
development of the core IT platform of the business. During the year 
the Group capitalised GBP 1.5 (2004: GBP 0.9) million of development 
expenditure.

Employees
The Group is committed to a policy of equal opportunity in matters 
relating to employment, training and career development of employees 
and is opposed to any form of less favourable treatment afforded on 
the grounds of disability, sex, race or religion. The Group recognises the 
importance of ensuring employees are kept informed of the Group’s 
performance, activities and future plans.

Substantial shareholdings
Shareholdings of 3 per cent or more of the Company’s ordinary share 
capital are detailed on page 26.

Directors’ responsibilities in relation to the accounts
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for 
each financial period which give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that 
period. In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are 
required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

• state that the financial statements comply with International Financial 
Reporting Standards;

•  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless  
it is inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue in 
business.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above 
requirements in preparing the financial statements.
The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records 
that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial 
position of the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the requirements of the Companies Act 1985.  
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group  
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection  
of fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the 
Group’s website.
Legislation in the UK and Sweden concerning the preparation and  
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in 
other jurisdictions.

Disclosure of information to the auditors
So far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information 
(that is, information needed by the company’s auditors in connection  
with preparing their report) of which the company’s 
auditors are unaware, and the director have taken all the steps that 
they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves 
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the 
company’s auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors
During the year, Deloitte & Touche LLP resigned as auditors to be 
replaced by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who were appointed by  
the Directors to fill the casual vacancy. The auditors, 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to 
continue in office, and a resolution that they be re-appointed will be 
proposed at the Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board,
London, 31 March 2006

   Anders Ström
Chairman and Director

 Peter Boggs Daniel Johannesson Peter Lindell Johan Lindgren  Henrik Tjärnström

Unibet 2005 – Directors’ report
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Remuneration Committee report
The Remuneration Committee has written Terms of Reference to 
determine, on behalf of the Board, the Group’s policy on management 
remuneration and to consider and approve remuneration packages 
for the Senior Managers including the executive management team, 
across the Group. In addition, the Committee monitors and makes 
recommendations on the level of senior management remuneration 
across the Group. The Board’s proposed report is set out below.
The Committee, which met 4 times during the year, comprises Peter 
Lindell and Anders Ström who were both elected at the 2005 AGM. 
Peter Lindell chairs the Committee.

Remuneration Policy
The policy of the Board is to attract, retain and motivate the best 
managers by rewarding them with competitive salary and benefit 
packages linked to achieving the Group’s financial objectives, as 
defined on page 7. 
During the year the Committee considered a variety of independent 
sources of information including the comparison of the CEO’s and the 
Senior Management’s remuneration with companies of a similar size 
and diversification. In addition, as Unibet is an international business 
the Committee takes into account employment practices both in the 
UK and overseas, as well as having due regard to the remuneration 
packages throughout the Group.
The performance-related elements of executive remuneration comprise 
annual bonuses and awards under the Unibet Executive Share Option 
Scheme. These incentives are designed to be relevant to the overall 
objectives of the Group and to enhance the business. The performance 
targets referred to below, set by the Committee, are reviewed annually 
and are intended to be stretching and to reward superior performance 
in light of competition and the prevailing economic climate.
The members of the Committee have no personal interest in the 
outcome of their decisions and give due regard to the interests of 
shareholders and to the continuing financial and commercial health of 
the business.
The remuneration packages of the Senior Managers comprise:
• Basic salaries which are reviewed annually having regard to 
individual performance, responsibility and skills, and comparable 
evidence of other companies in the sector, together with specific 
employee benefits.
• Performance-related bonuses, which are based on quantitative 
and qualitative goals. The goals are mainly linked to the company’s 
financial objectives such as gross margin and EBIT, projects linked to 
new markets and new products as well as business critical processes. 
The amount of bonus compared to basic salary varies depending 
on position and situation, but is in general up to half the amount 
of the basic salary. In 2005 most of the targets were achieved and 
accordingly almost full bonuses were paid.
• Equity awards through option schemes are granted based on position 
and performance under the terms of the Unibet Share Option Scheme, 
and are linked to the long-term performance of the Group and further 
align Senior Management’s interests with those of the shareholders.
Of the 194,126 share options outstanding at 31 December 2005, 
84,480 may only be exercised if gross winnings revenue in 2005 
exceeds 2004, and earnings per share has increased year on year. 
These were specific conditions attached as a result of increased 
competition in the recruiting of staff. A further 29,646 have the same 
performance conditions, except that the gross winnings increase must 
be at least 15 per cent. The remainder have no conditions attached.

Remuneration of the Board of Directors
The remuneration of the Board of Directors is determined by the full 
Board after approval at the AGM.

All Board Directors are elected as appropriate, at the AGM.
The Group does not operate any form of executive retirement benefits 
or pension scheme, and thus no contributions are made in respect 
of any Director. All Directors have rolling service contracts without 
notice periods. The auditors are required to report on the information 
contained in the folllowing two sections of this report on Directors’ 
Remuneration.

Total emoluments (audited)
Total emoluments of the Board of Directors and executive managers 
who served during the year are set out below:

   Fees/   2005 2004
GBP 000 salary Other Pensions Total Total

Directors
Mats Sundström, outgoing chairman 7 – – 7 20
Anders Ström, incoming chairman 103 – – 103 106
Peter Boggs 14 7 – 21 8
Daniel Johannesson 8 32 – 40 –
Peter Lindell 7 6 – 13 24
Johan Lindgren 10 – – 10 10
Henrik Tjärnström 13 – – 13 5

Executive management
CEO Pontus Lesse1 86 – – 86 135
CEO Petter Nylander2  114 – – 114 –
Executive management 422 44 11 477 361
Total 784 89 11 884 669
1to 30 September 2005
2from 1 August 2005

Directors’ interests (audited)
The Directors’ and executive managers’ beneficial interests in the shares/
SDRs of Unibet Group plc as at 31 December 2005, are set out below:

   Ordinary Ordinary
   shares/ shares/ Share Share
   SDRs SDRs options options
   at 31 Dec at 31 Dec at 31 Dec at 31 Dec
   2005 2004 2005 2004

Directors
Anders Ström 7,103,356  8,115,356  – –
Peter Boggs 8,875  2,600 – –
Daniel Johannesson 2,000 – – –
Peter Lindell 1,936,664 2,403,264  – –
Johan Lindgren 30,000 – – –
Henrik Tjärnström 10,000  8,000  – –

Executive management
CEO Petter Nylander  22,100 –  84,480  –
Executive management 487,811 71,000 109,646 21,650
Total  9,600,806 10,600,220 194,126 21,650

The closing price of the company’s shares at 31 December 2005 was 
161 SEK, and it has ranged from 73 SEK to 232 SEK during 2005.
Executive management include Didier Dewyn, Susan Ball, Michael 
Cornelis, Kristian Nylén and Mats Sjöstedt.
 

Performance graph
Shown on page 26 is a performance graph that compares the total 
shareholder return (TSR) of Unibet SDRs with the OMX Stockholm 
Price Index being the one where Unibet is listed and therefore the most 
appropriate comparison.
TSR is defined as the return shareholders would receive if they held a 
notional number of shares and received dividends on those shares over a 
period of time. The graph demonstrates that Unibet’s position continues to 
strengthen by comparison with the OMX Stockholm Price Index.

Peter Lindell
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Corporate Governance statement

From 1 July 2005, the Stockholmsbörsen Listing Rules incorporated 
the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance. From no later than the 
date of its next AGM, Unibet Group plc is required to:

•  explain how it applies the main and supporting principles of 
 the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance, and

• confirm whether or not it complies with the Code’s provisions and, 
 where it has not complied, to provide an explanation why not.
The following statement on pages 31 and 32 has not been audited.

Directors
The Board of Directors of Unibet Group plc is collectively responsible 
for the success of the Group and for its Corporate Governance and 
aims to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the Group within a 
framework of prudent and effective financial controls that enable risk 
to be assessed and managed.
As outlined on page 29, the Board comprises the Executive Chairman 
and five non-executive directors, of whom four are independent. The 
Swedish Code identifies the fundamental importance of independent 
non-executive directors in ensuring the objective balance of the Board, 
and sets out criteria to be considered in determining the independence 
of non-executive directors. In accordance with Provision 3.2.4 of the 
Code, the Board considers Peter Boggs, Daniel Johannesson,  
Johan Lindgren and Henrik Tjärnström to be independent non-
executive directors. 
To ensure effectiveness, the Board’s composition brings together a 
balance of skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the 
business. The composition of the Board and recommendations for the 
appointment of directors are dealt with by the Nomination Committee 
and its activities are set out separately in this report.
The Board is responsible to the shareholders for the Group’s overall 
strategy and direction and it usually meets on a quarterly basis 
throughout the year. A formal schedule sets out those matters 
specifically reserved for the Board and its Committees. Those matters 
include decisions on Group strategy and direction, acquisitions,
disposals and joint ventures, capital structure, material contracts, 
corporate governance and Group policies.
The number of Board and Committee meetings attended by each of 
the directors during the year was as follows:

  Full  Audit  Remuneration  Nomination
Name  Board Committee Committee  Committee

Anders Ström 6 – 4 2 
Peter Boggs 6 – – –
Daniel Johannesson 4 – – –
Peter Lindell 6 – 4 –
Johan Lindgren 5 4 – –
Henrik Tjärnström 6 4 – –

The Board has a standard agenda, including receiving and considering 
reports from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer on the Group’s operational performance, finances, ongoing 
strategy and risk profile, all of which are considered at the quarterly 
meetings. Where appropriate, matters are delegated to the Nomination, 
Audit and Remuneration Committees, and reports on their activities are 
included on pages 30, 31 and 32 respectively.
Brief resumés of the Board and senior executives can be found on 
pages 52 and 53.

The Working Procedures of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors has adopted written instructions for the Chief 
Executive. The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive have been 
established in writing to ensure the clear division of responsibilities, 

and this has been agreed by the Board.
At least once a year the Board of Directors will review the strategy 
and visit the Group’s different office locations, and meet without the 
management, CEO or CFO.
The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board; setting 
its agenda and taking full account of the issues and concerns of all 
Board members; ensuring effective communication with shareholders; 
taking the lead on director induction and development; encouraging 
active engagement by all directors, and ensuring that the performance 
of individuals and of the Board as a whole, and its Committees, is 
evaluated at least once a year.
The Chairman ensures that the Board is supplied with accurate, 
timely and clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their 
knowledge and familiarity with the Group through meetings with senior 
management. As part of the induction process, an induction pack is 
provided to non-executive directors. All directors have access to the 
company secretary who is responsible for ensuring good 
information flows within the Board and its Committees and between 
senior management and non-executive directors. The company 
secretary is also responsible for advising the Board, through the 
Chairman, on all corporate governance matters. Directors are 
encouraged to seek independent or specialist advice or training at 
the Group’s expense where this will add to their understanding of the 
Group in the furtherance of their duties.
In accordance with Provision 3.1.2 of the Code, the Board has 
introduced a process to formally evaluate its own performance and 
that of its Committees and individual directors. The performance of the 
Board and its Committees has been the subject of Board discussion, 
led by the Chairman to consider effectiveness against performance 
criteria and potential risks to performance. The performance 
evaluations of Board members have been structured in such a way as 
to ensure a balanced and objective review of Directors’ performance by 
using a system of questionnaires intended to stimulate discussion of 
factors including individual performance and commitment. 
Following these performance reviews, the Chairman is responsible 
for ensuring that the appropriate actions are taken. The evaluations 
provide a feedback mechanism and have helped in identifying Board 
performance objectives as well as individual actions such as training.

Remuneration and D&O Liability Insurance
The general meeting establishes the principles and the maximum 
amount of the Directors’ fees. Employees cannot receive director’s 
fees. A Director can, during a short period of time, supply consultancy 
services, but only if this is more cost-effective and better than any 
external alternative. Any such consultancy fee will be disclosed in the 
Annual Report. None of the Directors holds share options issued by 
the Company. Unibet has taken out Directors and Officers Liability 
insurance covering the risk of personal liability for their services to the 
Group. Cover is in place for an indemnity level of GBP 1 million.
Biographies of each of the Directors are set out on page 52.

Nomination Committee Report
The Nomination Committee has written Terms of Reference to lead the 
process for Board appointments and make recommendations to the 
Annual General Meeting thereon.
The Nomination Committee, which met twice during the year, 
comprises the Chairman of the Board, Anders Ström, shareholders 
Staffan Persson (Committee Chairman) and Andreas Versteegh, all of 
whom were elected at the 2005 AGM. 
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Remuneration Committee Report
A report on executive Directors’ remuneration and the activities of the 
Remuneration Committee is set out on page 30.

Audit Committee Report
The Audit Committee advises and makes recommendations to the 
Board on matters including financial reporting, internal controls, risk 
management, and the appointment of auditors. The role of 
the Committee is set out in its written terms of reference.
The Committee, which met 4 times during the year, comprises two 
independent non-executive directors, Johan Lindgren and Henrik 
Tjärnström, who were elected at the 2005 AGM. The Committee is 
chaired by Johan Lindgren, a qualified finance professional who has 
the relevant accounting and financial management expertise. Where 
appropriate, the Committee consulted with the Chairman of the Board, 
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer regarding 
their proposals. The external auditors also attended two of the meetings. 
Responsibilities include monitoring the integrity of the financial 
statements of the Group and any formal announcements relating to 
the Group’s financial performance. The Committee has reviewed the 
Group’s financial statements and formal announcements relating to the 
Group’s financial performance before their presentation to the Board. 
In so doing, it considered accounting policies, areas of judgement 
or estimate, and reporting requirements, as well as matters brought 
to their attention by the external auditors. The Audit Committee is 
responsible for assessing the requirement for a separate internal 
audit function. The Committee remains satisfied that the culture of 
embedded controls and continual peer review, together with the work 
of the Chief Financial Officer, the Group Security Controller and the 
Head of Trading, is effective in monitoring the established systems. An 
internal audit function would have limited additional benefit at this time 
due to the size of the Group, although it remains under review.
The Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group’s systems of 
internal control and risk management, and determines the scope of 
work undertaken by the Chief Financial Officer, the Group Security 
Controller and the Head of Trading. It receives reports from the Chief 
Financial Officer, with whom the results are discussed on a regular 
basis. 
The Committee is responsible for making recommendations to 
the Board in relation to the appointment of external auditors. It is 
responsible for monitoring the independence and objectivity of the 
external auditors, and for agreeing the level of remuneration and the 
extent of non-audit services. During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers 
LLP (‘PwC’), who were appointed as Auditors of the Group on 5 
October 2005, reported to the Committee on its audit strategy and the 
scope of audit work. The Committee has reviewed the performance 
of PwC and the level of non-audit fees paid to PwC during the year. 
These are set out in note 4 on page 41. The provision of non-audit 
services, except tax compliance and routine taxation advice, must be 
referred to the Committee where it is likely to exceed a pre-determined 
threshold of GBP 50,000. Any work that falls below that threshold 
must be pre-approved by the Chief Financial Officer. PwC has, during 
the year, carried out consultancy work regarding the Group’s corporate 
structure and the tax implications thereof. By monitoring and restricting 
both the nature and quantum of non-audit services provided by the 
external auditors, the Committee seeks to safeguard auditor objectivity 
and independence.

Internal Control
The Directors have ultimate responsibility for the system of internal 
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure 
to achieve business objectives. In pursuing these objectives, 
internal control can only provide reasonable and not absolute 

assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Management team members are responsible for reviewing risks, 
and for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks 
applicable to their respective areas of business. Risks are reviewed and 
assessed on a regular basis by the Group Security Controller, the Head 
of Trading, the Audit Committee and the Board. The effectiveness of 
controls is considered in conjunction with the range of risks and their 
significance to the operating circumstances of individual areas of the 
business.
Working throughout the Group, the role of the Group Security 
Controller and the Head of Trading is to identify, monitor and report 
on the significant financial and operating risks faced by the Group 
to provide assurance that Unibet meets the highest standards of 
corporate governance expected by its stakeholders. 
The Audit Committee assists the Board in its review of the 
effectiveness of internal controls and is responsible for setting the 
strategy for the internal control review. In doing so, it takes account 
of the organisational framework and reporting mechanisms embedded 
within the Group, and the work of the Group Security Controller and 
the Head of Trading. 
In its deliberations the Board has taken account of the advice of the 
Audit Committee, reports received from the external auditors, and any 
other related factors which have come to its attention.
The Board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process for identifying, 
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the company, 
that it has been in place for the year under review and up to the date 
of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, and that it accords with 
the Swedish Code on internal control. The process does not extend to 
associate companies or joint ventures where the Group does not have 
a controlling interest. In joint ventures, systems of internal control are 
agreed in conjunction with joint venture partners. Details of associate 
companies and joint ventures are provided in note 13 to the accounts.
The Board is in the process of submitting an internal control report.

Communication with investors
In the interests of developing a mutual understanding of objectives, 
the Investor Relations manager has met regularly with institutional 
investors to discuss the publicly-disclosed performance of the Group 
and its future strategy. Invitations have been extended to institutional 
investors to meet the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial 
Officer.
The Board is kept informed of shareholder views and correspondence. 
Corporate and financial presentations are regularly made to fund 
managers, brokers and the media, particularly at the announcement 
of interim and year end results. Links to webcast presentations are 
published on the Group’s website. All shareholders are invited to attend 
the Annual General Meeting in May where they have the opportunity 
to put questions to the Directors, including the Chairmen of Board 
Committees.
At the Annual General Meeting separate resolutions are proposed for 
each substantially different issue to enable all of them to receive proper 
and due consideration. 
Notice of the Annual General Meeting and related papers are posted 
on the Group’s website between four and six weeks in advance of the 
meeting. Further information on the activities of the Group and other 
shareholder information is available via the Unibet Group website, 
www.unibetgroupplc.com.

Statement of Compliance
The Directors believe that they are currently in compliance with the 
majority of the terms of the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance 
and are endeavouring to ensure full compliance by next year end.

Corporate Governance statement – Unibet 2005 Unibet 2005 – Business Performance Review
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Business Performance Review

Financial review
These financial statements have been presented in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), in compliance with 
the Swedish Stock Exchange (Stockholmsbörsen) requirements and 
the UK Companies Act 1985. 
The accounting policies remain unchanged from last year, with the 
exception of two areas:
a) Treatment of sports betting revenue
Following clarification of IAS 39, betting transactions are now shown 
net, within the revenue line of the income statement, ie. stakes (or 
gross turnover) less payouts, known as gross winnings revenue. There 
is no impact on gross profit; however gross win will now be shown in 
the revenue line, with betting duty deducted to arrive at gross profit. 
Additional disclosure of gross turnover will be made below the income 
statement, defined as gross stakes placed on sports betting and net 
revenues from non-sports betting. The non-sports betting revenues are 
not affected by this treatment.
b) Treatment of free bets (customer bonuses)
The accounting policy for customer bonuses has been changed. In line 
with best practice, Unibet has removed any impact of customer 
bonuses from gross winnings revenue, with the net cost of the free bet 
being charged to marketing. In the year 2005 gross winnings revenue 
and marketing were both reduced by GBP 321,000 (2004: GBP 
171,000). The 2004 reported figures have been adjusted in line with 
the new treatment.
With effect from 19 August 2005, MrBookmaker Group (Global Leisure 
Partners Limited and its subsidiaries) is consolidated in Unibet’s results.
 
Comments on the financial development
The core sports betting business of Unibet has grown continually over 
the past four financial years. The growth has been experienced across 
all Unibet’s geographical markets. The introduction of non-sports betting 
products has strongly contributed to Unibet’s results and has helped to 
smooth out the seasonal effects and volatility of sports betting.

Gross Winnings Revenue
Gross winnings revenue on sports betting represents the net receipt 
of bets placed and payouts made, within the consolidated entity for the 
financial period. For the non-sports betting segment, gross winnings 
revenue equates to Gross turnover.
Gross winnings revenue from sports betting amounted to GBP 17.4 
(2004: 16.4) million for the full year 2005.
Non-sports betting saw strong gross winnings revenue amounting to 
GBP 26.1 (2004: 8.3) million for the full year 2005. Of the non-sports 
betting gross winnings for the full year, poker represented 57 per cent.

Unibet 2005 – Business Performance Review

Cumulative Gross winnings margin on Sports Betting

Gross winnings revenue by market and business segment
(based on country of residence of customer)

 2005 2004
  Non-  Sports Non- 
 Sports Sports  Betting Sports Total
GBP 000 Betting Betting Total (re-stated) Betting (re-stated)

Sweden 7,156 14,702 21,858 7,696 5,173 12,869 
Rest of Nordic 4,112 6,096 10,208 4,308 2,246 6,554
Southern
Europe  3,361 3,470 6,831 1,148 849 1,997
Other 2,793 1,825 4,618 3,289 34 3,323
Total 17,422 26,093 43,515 16,441 8,302 24,743

Gross winnings revenue margin on sports betting
The gross winnings revenue margin on sports betting for 2005 was  
7.0 per cent (2004: 8.2 per cent). Gross winnings margins can vary quite 
significantly from one month to the next, depending on the outcome of 
sporting events, i.e. not always as predicted. However, over time these 
margins will even out and calculated from January 2004 to December 
2005 demonstrates an average of 7.6 per cent. This can be seen in the 
graph below. The bars show gross winnings margin by month.

Betting Duties
The Group’s Income Statement shows Gross Winnings Revenue less 
Betting Duty equalling Gross Profit. For more information see page 56. 
Betting Duties are payable in the UK and Malta. The betting duty in 
the UK is currently 15 per cent of Gross Winnings. The Gross Turnover 
in Malta is subject to 0.5 per cent betting duty payable on a monthly 
basis, subject to a maximum capped amount.

Gross profit
Gross profit for the full year 2005 amounted to GBP 42.9 million 
(2004: GBP 23.9 million).
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Administrative expenses
Administrative expenses include all indirect costs of running the 
business and are a combination of activity related costs and fixed costs 
such as salaries etc. During the full year 2005, administrative expenses 
were GBP 23.0 million (2004: GBP 12.0 million). Of the administrative 
expenses, GBP 10.2 million (2004: GBP 4.0 million) were marketing 
costs and GBP 5.9 million (2004: GBP 3.7 million) were salaries and 
associated costs.

Profit from operations
Profit from operations for the full year 2005 was GBP 19.9 million 
(2004: GBP 11.9 million).

Capitalised development expenditure
IAS 38 requires the capitalisation of certain development costs. These 
are costs incurred in developing the existing IT platform and the 
integration and further development of new products. These are 
identifiable assets from which a future economic benefit is expected 
to be derived. In the full year 2005, expenditure of GBP 1.5 million 
(2004: GBP 0.9 million), has been capitalised.

Taxation
Taxation has been fully provided for. 

Profit after tax
Profit after tax for the full year 2005 was GBP 13.7 million (2004: 
GBP 8.9 million).

Balance sheet 
Unibet’s balance sheet reflects both the Group’s growth in profitability 
and its ability to manage working capital. The increase in cashflow 
from operating activities is largely a result of these two factors. As is 
common in the bookmaking industry, the Group employs a strategy of 
ensuring customer deposits are received before bets can be placed 
and therefore both customer balances and cash have increased with 
the growth in Gross winnings revenue. In addition to these two line 
items, along with reserves, the other significant item on the balance 
sheet is goodwill. This arose on the acquisition of the MrBookmaker 
Group. 
Certain of the Group’s non-current assets relate to IT development 
costs, which have been capitalised in accordance with the policy 
described earlier. Other non-current assets include computer hardware 
and fixtures and fittings. 
The non-cash current assets on the balance sheet therefore relate only 
to other receivables, prepayments and taxation.
The largest numbers included within liabilities are trade and other 
payables. These mainly comprise customer balances, but also include 
other creditors such as accrued expenses and taxation.

Financial position and cashflow
The cash in hand position at the end of 2005 stood at GBP 26.0 
(2004: GBP 28.3) million. The cash outflow for the year 2005, after 
payment of GBP 22.25 million cash up front for the acquisition of  
MrBookmaker Group (Global Leisure Partners Limited and its  
subsidiaries), was GBP 1.8 (2004: inflow GBP 19.7) million, of which 
GBP 23.9 (2004: GBP 16.0) million arose from operating activites.

Business Performance Review – Unibet 2005
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Unibet 2005 – Consolidated Income statement

Consolidated Income Statement

     2004
GBP 000  Note 2005 (re-stated)

Gross winnings revenue 3 43,515 24,743
Betting duty  –595 –854
Gross profit  42,920 23,889

Administrative expenses  –23,020 –11,969
Profit from operations 3, 4, 5 19,900 11,920

Finance costs 6 –610 19
Interest received 7 767 522
Share of associate’s profit after tax  53 –
Profit before tax  20,110 12,461

Income tax expense 8 –6,391 –3,610
Profit after tax  13,719 8,851

 Gross Turnover  276,087 209,346

All the above amounts relate to continuing operations.

Key ratios Note 2005 2004

Operating margin, %  45.73 48.18 
(Profit from operations/revenue for the year)  
Return on total assets, %  18.9 41.6
(Profit after tax/average of opening and closing assets for the year)  
Equity/assets ratio, %  54 59
Employees at year end  175 109
Earnings per share (GBP) 10 0.523 0.370
Fully diluted earnings per share (GBP) 10 0.515 0.359
Number of shares at year end  28,125,092 25,081,192 
Fully diluted number of shares at year end  28,394,747  25,841,092 
Average number of shares 10 26,223,857 23,890,576 
Average number of diluted shares 10 26,640,068 24,676,613

More detailed definitions can be found on page 56.
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Consolidated Balance sheet – Unibet 2005

Consolidated Balance Sheet

   31 December 31 December 
GBP 000 Notes 2005 2004

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 21 72,711 –
Intangible assets 11 7,034 1,017
Investments accounted for using equity method  13 635 575
Property, plant and equipment 12 1,268 1,164
Deferred tax asset 17 636 210
   82,284 2,966
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 3,063 846
Corporation tax recoverable  1,740 –
Cash and cash equivalents   26,037 28,322
   30,840 29,168
TOTAL ASSETS  113,124 32,134

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 19, 20 141 125
Share premium 20 38,720 6,632
Other reserves 20 1,538 1,542 
Profit and Loss Account 20 20,222 10,613
   60,621 18,912
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability 17 11,539 4,166
   11,539 4,166
Current liabilities
Loan notes 14 22,250 –
Trade and other payables 16 15,585 8,553
Corporation tax payable  3,129 503
   40,964 9,056
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  113,124 32,134

   

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY
GBP 000  2005 2004

Opening balance   18,912 4,836 
Movement in share premium  32,088  5,210
Increase in share capital  16  14 
Dividend paid  –4,169 –
Translation differences  –4  1
Share Options - value of employee services  59 –
Profit and loss account  13,719  8,851
Closing balance  60,621  18,912

The financial statements on pages 35 to 49 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2006 and were signed on its behalf by:

Anders Ström
Director
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Unibet 2005 – Consolidated cashflow statement

Consolidated Cashflow Statement

GBP 000  Note 2005 2004

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit from operations  19,900 11,920
Adjustments for:  
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  601 506
Amortisation of intangible assets  1,119 499
Operating cashflows before movements in working capital  21,620 12,925

Decrease/increase in receivables  1,347 –821
Increase in payables  1,449 4,110
Cash generated by operations  24,416 16,214

Income taxes paid  –519 –250
NET CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  23,897 15,964

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash acquired upon acquisition 21 4,587 –
Cash paid for acquisition 21 –25,326 –
Interest received  767 522
Interest paid  –105 –
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  –619 –835
Development costs on intangible assets  –1,461 –859
Investment in associate  – –270
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES  –22,157 –1,442

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of ordinary share capital 20 649 5,225
Dividends paid 9 –4,169 –
NET CASH USED IN/FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  –3,520 5,225

NET DECREASE/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  –1,780 19,747

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR  28,322 8,555

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  –505 20
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE YEAR END  26,037 28,322
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

  Note 1  Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and IFRIC interpretations endorsed by the EU, and 
with those parts of the UK Companies Act 1985 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out in note 2 below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reporting amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although 
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from the estimates.

  Note 2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies have been consistently applied to the years presented, with the exception of the changes in accounting policy as set out below.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and enterprises controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to  
31 December each year. Control is achieved where the Company has the ability to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee enterprise so as to obtain  
benefits from its activities.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used in line with those used by other members of  
the Group.
All intercompany transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation.
All associate entities are accounted for by applying the equity accounting method.

Changes in accounting policy
Treatment of sports betting revenue
Following clarification of IAS 39, betting transactions are now shown net, within the revenue line of the income statement, ie. stakes (or gross turnover) less payouts, 
known as gross winnings revenue. There is no impact on gross profit; however gross win will now be shown in the revenue line, with betting duty deducted to arrive at 
gross profit. The non-sports betting revenues are not affected by this treatment.
Treatment of free bets (customer bonuses)
The accounting policy for customer bonuses has been changed. In line with best practice, Unibet has removed any impact of customer bonuses from gross winnings 
revenue with the net cost of the free bet being charged to marketing.
The financial effects of these changes are detailed on page 33.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary undertaking is the difference between the fair value of the consideration paid and the fair value of the identifiable assets 
and liabilities acquired. Impairment tests on the carrying value of goodwill are undertaken every year in accordance with IFRS.

Revenue recognition
Gross winnings revenue on sports betting represents the net receipt of bets placed and payouts made, within the consolidated entity for the financial period. For the 
non-sports betting segment, gross winnings revenue equates to Gross turnover.

Financial instruments
The accounting treatment of gross winnings revenues, which are considered to be financial instruments, is discussed above.

Leasing
Unibet’s leases are all operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies
The Group operates both in and outside the UK. These financial statements are presented in GBP since that is the currency of the country in which the Group is 
registered. Transactions in currencies other than GBP are initially recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in such currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are included in the net profit or 
loss for the period.
The Group does not enter into forward contracts nor options to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risks. 
On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense 
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. These translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the same period. Exchange 
differences arising on the translation of subsidiary reserves are classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s translation reserve.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements – Unibet 2005 
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Unibet 2005 – Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Retirement benefit costs and pensions
The Group does not operate any pension scheme for employees or directors. Where the Group makes contributions in relation to an employee’s defined contribution 
pension scheme, the amount paid is charged to the income statement on an accrual basis.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable, including deferred tax.
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of 
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is  
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the 
corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally  
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial 
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates and interests in joint ventures, except where 
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will 
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the 
income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
Deferred tax liabilities in respect of overseas profits which may be repatriated to the UK are fully provided for.

Intangible assets
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
An internally-generated development intangible asset is recognised only if all of the following are met:
l An asset is created that can be identified (such as a database or software);
l  It is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and
l The development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally 
generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over three years.
Intangible assets identified as a result of a business combination are dealt with in line with IAS 38, and brought on to the consolidated balance sheet at the date of 
acquisition. Acquired intangibles include customer databases and trade names which are being amortised on a straight line basis over five years, as the Directors believe 
this to be their useful economic life. 

Property, plant and equipment
Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of the assets over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method, on the following bases:
Plant and machinery 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Fixtures and fittings 3 years
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognised in the income statement.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Trade payables
Trade payables are stated at their nominal value.

Share based employee remuneration
When share options are granted to employees, a charge is made to the Group income statement and a reserve created in capital and reserves to record the intrinsic value 
of the awards in accordance with IFRS 2.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances, translated into GBP where appropriate, held in current accounts and on short term deposits.

Key assumptions
Other than already noted in accounting policies above, the key assumptions relate predominantly to views taken in respect of litigation, as highlighted on pages 24 and 25.

Financial risk management
The Group’s multi-national operations expose it to foreign currency exchange rate risk. The recent acceptance of multi-currency credit cards provides a natural hedge 
against these risks, as currency inflows and outflows are more evenly matched.
The Group accepts Swedish Kronor, GBP sterling, Danish Kroner, Euros, Norweigan Kroner, Swiss Francs and US Dollars.
Exposures to other currencies within the Group are not considered material.
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  Note 3 Business and geographical segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into two operating divisions – sports betting and non-sports betting. These divisions are the basis on which 
the Group reports its primary segment information. Secondary segment information is given in the form of the main geographical areas in which the Group manages its 
business.
The principal activities are as follows:
Sports betting – Bets taken on sporting events
Non-sports betting –  Bets taken on non-sporting events, primarily casino and poker

Segmental information about these businesses is presented below.

Primary reporting format - business segments

31 December 2005   Sports Non-Sports 
GBP 000   Betting Betting Total

Revenue 
Gross winnings revenue   17,422 26,093 43,515
Results
Profit from operations   7,976 11,924 19,900
Group costs – finance costs     –610
                        – interest received     767
                        – share of associate’s profit after tax      53
Profit before tax     20,110
Income tax expense     –6,391
Profit after tax     13,719

Other information     
Capital additions   2,080 – 2,080
Depreciation and amortisation   1,720 – 1,720

Balance sheet
Assets – segment assets   113,124 – 113,124
Liabilities – segment liabilities   –52,503 – –52,503

31 December 2004   Sports Betting Non-Sports Total
GBP 000   (re-stated) Betting (re-stated)

Revenue
Gross winnings revenue   16,441 8,302 24,743
Result
Profit from operations   3,618 8,302 11,920
Group costs – finance costs     19
                        – interest received     522
                        – share of associate’s profit after tax      –
Profit before tax     12,461
Income tax expense     –3,610
Profit after tax     8,851

Other information
Capital additions 1,704 – 1,704
Depreciation and amortisation 1,005 – 1,005

Balance sheet
Assets – segment assets 32,134 – 32,134
Liabilities – segment liabilities –13,222 – –13,222

Secondary format - geographical segments
  31 Dec 31 Dec 
GBP 000 2005 2004

Gross winnings revenue by geographical market
Sweden 21,858 12,869
Rest of Nordic 10,208 6,554
Southern Europe 6,831 1,997
Other 4,618 3,323
  43,515 24,743

Carrying amount of segment assets
Sweden 660 207
Other 86,427 3,605
Cash 26,037 28,322
  113,124 32,134

Additions to Fixed Assets
Sweden 128 104
Other 1,952 1,600
  2,080 1,704
All the above amounts relate to continuing operations.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements – Unibet 2005
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  Note 4 Profit from operations

Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:
  31 Dec 31 Dec  
GBP 000 2005 2004

Group audit fees 180 157
Other fees paid to the Group auditors in respect of taxation advice 124 345
Operating lease rentals 389 260
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 601 506
Amortisation of intangibles 1,119 499

Staff costs 5,921 3,670
Research and development expenditure 515 439

  Note 5 Staff costs

The work of all employees relates principally to sports betting. 
  31 Dec 31 Dec 
Average number of employees 2005 2004

Finance, administration and management 57 44
Marketing 24 15
Gaming 39 28
Research and development 19 11
  139 98

Staff costs can be broken down as follows: 31 Dec 31 Dec 
GBP 000 2005 2004

Wages and salaries 5,257 3,312
Social security costs 633 346
Other pensions costs 31 12
  5,921 3,670

The highest paid Director was Anders Ström, who received emoluments of GBP 103,148 during the year (2004: GBP 106,060).
The senior management remuneration is disclosed on page 30.

  Note 6 Finance costs

  31 Dec 31 Dec 
GBP 000 2005 2004

Interest on loan notes  –105 –
Foreign exchange loss/gain on transactions –505 19  
  –610 19

  Note 7 Interest receivable

  31 Dec 31 Dec
GBP 000 2005 2004

Interest on bank deposits 767 522

Unibet 2005 – Notes to the consolidated financial statements



42

  Note 8 Income tax expense

  31 Dec 31 Dec 
GBP 000  2005 2004

Current tax:
 UK corporation tax – –
 Current year foreign tax –1,147 –517
  –1,147 –517

Deferred tax (note 17):
 Current year –5,244 –3,093
  –5,244 –3,093
Total tax charge –6,391 –3,610

Corporation tax is calculated at 30 per cent. (2004: 30 per cent) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates 
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows: 

  31 Dec 31 Dec 
GBP 000  2005 2004

Profit before tax 20,110 12,461
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2004:30%) –6,033 –3,738
Effects of:
 Permanent differences –185 11
 Capital allowances in excess of depreciation –31 –4
 Utilisation/non-utilisation of tax losses –436 –1
 Addition of tax losses in associate – –6
 Overseas tax rates 5,503 3,128
 Share option relief deduction 35 –
 Other –93 –
 Other deferred tax movements 385 –
Deferred tax provision for tax on future remittance of overseas earnings –5,536 –3,209
Prior period adjustments – 209
Tax charge  –6,391 –3,610 

  Note 9 Dividends

   31 Dec 31 Dec 
GBP 000  2005 2004

Dividend paid 4,169 –

In addition, the Board of Directors is proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ending 31 December 2005 of SEK 2.25 per ordinary share/SDR, which will 
absorb an estimated GBP 4.6 million of Shareholders’ funds. It will be paid on 18 May 2006 to shareholders who are on the VPC register on 15 May, 2006.
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  Note 10 Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:  
  31 Dec 31 Dec 
GBP 000 2005 2004

Earnings
Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share (net profit for the year) 13,719 8,851
Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 13,719 8,851

Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share  26,223,857 23,890,576
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: Share options 416,211 786,037
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 26,640,068 24,676,613

Earnings per share
Earnings per share  0.523 0.370
Fully diluted earnings per share 0.515 0.359

The nominal value per share is GBP 0.005 and the number of shares has been re-stated to reflect the consolidation of the nominal value followed by the subsequent split 
of four for every one, as well as the new number of options in existence.
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  Note 12 Property, plant and equipment

 Plant and Fixtures and Office 
GBP 000 machinery fittings equipment Total

Cost
At 1 January 2004 79 298 1,928 2,305
Additions  1 503 341 845
Disposals –5 – –16 –21
Foreign exchange translation difference – – –49 –49
At 31 December 2004 75 801 2,204 3,080

Additions 6 41 572 619
Acquisitions 9 13 80 102
Disposals –9 –4 –259 –272
Foreign exchange translation difference – – 30 30
At 31 December 2005 81 851 2,627 3,559

Depreciation
At 1 January 2004 38 182 1,251 1,471
Charge for the year 16 93 397 506
Foreign exchange translation difference – –5 –43 –48
Disposals – – –13 –13
At 31 December 2004 54 270 1,592 1,916

Charge for the year 14 163 424 601
Foreign exchange translation difference – – 21 21
Disposals –5 –1 –241 –247
At 31 December 2005 63 432 1,796 2,291

Net book value
At 31 December 2005 18 419 831 1,268
At 31 December 2004 21 531 612 1,164

 

  Note 11 Intangible assets

  Development Customer 
GBP 000 costs database Other Total

Cost 
At 1 January 2005 2,163 – – 2,163
Acquisitions - through business combinations (note 21) – 4, 825 850 5,675
Additions - internally generated 1,461 – – 1,461
At 31 December 2005 3,624 4,825 850 9,299

Amortisation
At 1 January 2005  1,146 – – 1,146
Charge for the year 702 354 63 1,119
At 31 December 2005 1,848 354 63 2,265

Net book value
At 31 December 2005 1,776 4,471 787 7,034
At 31 December 2004 1,017 – – 1,017

The amortisation period for development costs is three years, and for all other intangible assets it is five years, based on the Director’s assessment of the useful economic 
life. All amortisation charges have been charged to administrative expenses.
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  Note 14 Financial instruments

The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are set out below:

  2005 2004
GBP 000 Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

Loan notes 22,250 22,250 – –
Trade and other payables (note 16) 15,585 15,585 8,553 8,553
Trade and other receivables (note 15) 3,063 3,063 846 846
Cash and cash equivalents 26,037 26,037 28,322 28,322

At 31 December 2005, Unibet had term loan facilities of GBP 22.25 million and a revolving credit facility of GBP 7.75 million. None of these facilities was drawn down at 
the year end, and all are repayable within three years. Commitment fees are due in the event the loans are not utilised.

 

  Note 15 Trade and other receivables
  
  31 Dec 31 Dec
GBP 000 2005  2004

Due within one year:  
Other debtors 1,893 376
Prepayments and accrued income 1,170 470
  3,063 846

 

  Note 13 Subsidiaries and associated companies

Details of the company’s subsidiaries and associated companies at 31 December 2005 are as follows:
  Proportion of ownership 
 Place of incorporation and voting power Activity

Name of subsidiary
Unibet (London) Limited Great Britain 100% Online gambling and support services
Unibet Investments Limited Great Britain 100% Holding company
Firstclear Limited Great Britain 100% Cash management
Unibet Software R&D AB Sweden 100% Research and development
Global Leisure Partners Limited Malta 100% Holding company
Unibet (Holding) Limited Malta 100% Holding company
Unibet (International) Limited Malta 100% Online gambling and support services
Unibet (Tenue) Limited Malta 100% Holding company
MrBookmaker.com Limited Malta 100% Licensor
Telebet NV Belgium 100% Support services
ICT Service NV Belgium 100% Research and development
Unibet.com Foundation BVBA Belgium 100% Support services
E-Gaming United Limited Belize 100% Holding company
Unibet Holdings (Belize) Limited Belize 100% Holding company
Unibet Gaming CR SA  Costa Rica 100% Support services

Name of associated companies
B2B Poker (Sweden) AB Sweden 23% Poker software supplier
Monnet Enterprises Limited Gibraltar 25% Owns and distributes Supertoto

In relation to the Group’s interests in associates, the assets, liabilities, income and expenses are shown below:

GBP 000 2005 2004

Loan to associate 305 305
Goodwill 108 108
Current assets 597 639
Non-current assets 152 106
Current liabilities –527 –583
  635 575

Income 5,184 772
Expenses –5,108 –792
  76 –20
Taxation –23 –
Share of associate’s profit/loss after tax 53 –20

Notes to the consolidated financial statements – Unibet 2005
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  Note 16 Current liabilities: trade and other payables

   31 Dec 31 Dec
GBP 000 2005 2004

Trade creditors 2,131 1,061
Customer balances 8,568 4,858
Taxation and social security  112 106
Other creditors 1,954 734
Accruals  2,820 1,794
   15,585 8,553
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  Note 17 Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting period:

Deferred tax liability
 Capitalised Tax allocation Unremitted Accelerated tax Unrealised Tax Intangible 
GBP 000 expenditure reserves earnings depreciation exchange loss losses assets Total

At 1 January 2004 –184 –11 –677 2 7 – – –863
Charge/credit to income for the year –101 –5 –3,209 –11 –3 236 – –3,093
At 31 December 2004 –285 –16 –3,886 –9 4 236 – –3,956

Acquired intangible assets (note 21) – – – – – – –1,703 –1,703
Charge/credit to income for the year –92 16 –5,537 –21 –10 400 – –5,244
At 31 December 2005 –377 – –9,423 –30 –6 636 –1,703 –10,903

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

  31 Dec 31 Dec 
GBP 000 2005 2004

Deferred tax liabilities –11,539 –4,166
Deferred tax assets 636 210
Net position –10,903 –3,956

At 31 December 2005 the Group had unused trading tax losses of GBP 2,124,709 (2004: GBP 771,920), and other unused tax losses of GBP 70,600 (2004: GBP 
94,557) available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of GBP 2,124,709 (2004: 716,123) of the revenue losses, and 
GBP nil (2004: 70,600) of the other losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining losses due to insufficient evidence of their reversal in 
future periods. Losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
In addition, the aggregate amount of other deductible temporary differences at 31 December 2005 for which deferred tax assets have not been recognised is GBP 
48,552 (2004: GBP 14,810). A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for unexercised share options for GBP 340,558.

 

  Note 18  Share based payments

The Unibet Group plc Executive Share Option Scheme was first introduced in December 2000 and revised in May 2004. Under the scheme, the Board can grant options 
over shares in the company to employees of the company. Options are granted with a fixed exercise price equal to 110 per cent of the average closing share price in the 
5 days prior to the date of grant. Awards under the scheme are generally made to employees at senior management level. Options granted under the scheme during 2005 
will become exercisable on 1 November 2008. Exercise of an option is subject to continued employment. Options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model. Certain performance conditions are attached to share options. These are explained on page 30 in the Remuneration Committee report. The fair value per option 
granted and the assumptions used in the calculation are as follows:

Grant date  25 May 2005  28 September 2005

Average share price prior to grant date  GBP 11.65 GBP 12.42
Exercise price  GBP 12.82 GBP 13.66
Number of employees  1 12
Shares under option 84,480 69,175
Vesting period (years)  3.48 3.13
Expected volatility  35%  35%
Option life (years)  3.48 3.13
Expected life (years)  3.48  3.13
Risk free rate  2.50%  2.25%
Expected dividends expressed as a dividend yield  2.50%  2.50%
Fair value per option  GBP 2.36 GBP 2.53
 
The expected volatility is based on implicit volatilities of traded options in technology-related companies. The expected life is the average expected period to exercise. 
The risk free rate of return is the approximate implicit risk free interest rate for the options’ term to maturity, based on the yield to maturity of the bonds SO-1040 and 
SO-1034 on May 31, 2005. The options subsisting at 31 December 2004 are considered immaterial in relation to the total IFRS 2 charge. A reconciliation of option 
movements over the year to 31 December 2005 is shown overleaf:
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  Note 18  continued

 2005 2004
   Weighted   Weighted
   average  average
    exercise price   exercise price
  Number GBP Number GBP

Outstanding at 1 January or date of flotation  189,975  4.03  197,475  4.10
Exercised  –160,975 4.03  –7,500  6.01
Restated for 4:1 share split 116,000 1.01 n/a n/a
Granted  153,655 13.20  – –
Outstanding at 31 December 269,655  7.96 189,975  4.03

 2005 2004

 Weighted Average Remaining life  Weighted Average Remaining life
Exercise Price   Number    Exercise Price   Number   
GBP  of Shares  Expected Contractual GBP  of Shares Expected     Contractual

1.01 116,000 0.4  0.4 4.02 188,975 0.5  0.5
12.82 84,480 2.9  2.9 5.48 1,000 0.4 0.4
13.66 69,175 2.9  2.9     
 
The weighted average share price during the period for options exercised over the year was GBP 4.03 (2004: GBP 6.01). The total charge for the year relating to 
employee share based payment plans was GBP 59,000 (2004: nil), all of which related to equity-settled share based payment transactions. 

  Note 19 Share capital

GBP  2005 2004

Authorised:
At 1 January
50,000,000 ordinary shares of GBP 0.02 each  1,000,000 1,000,000
1 June 2005 four for one share split resulting in 200,000,000 ordinary shares of GBP 0.005 each
At 31 December   1,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid up:
At 1 January 2004 – 5,559,098 ordinary shares of GBP 0.02 each.  111,182
8 June 2004: issue of 703,700 ordinary shares of GBP 0.02 each. (consideration: GBP 6,977,562)  14,074
15 November 2004: issue of 7,500 ordinary shares of GBP 0.02 each. (consideration: GBP 44,154)  150

At 1 January 2005 – 6,270,298 ordinary shares of GBP 0.02 each.  125,406 
2 May 2005: issue of 160,975 ordinary shares of GBP 0.02 each. (consideration: GBP 648,580) 3,220 
1 June 2005 four for one share split resulting in 25,725,092 ordinary shares of GBP 0.005
12 September 2005: issue of 2,400,000 ordinary shares of GBP 0.005 (asset consideration: GBP 31,454,784) 12,000
At 31 December  140,626 125,406

 

   Note 20 Capital and translation reserves

  Share premium Translation Merger Profit and loss
GBP 000 Share capital account reserve reserve account Total

Reserves brought forward at 1 January 2004 111 1,422 8  1,533 1,762 4,836
Initial Public Offering Costs – –1,797 – – – –1,797
New issue of ordinary shares 14 6,963 – – – 6,977
Exercise of share options – 44  – – 44
Net profit for the year – – – – 8,851 8,851
Foreign exchange differences on the translation  
of net equity investments in foreign enterprises – – 1 – – 1
At 31 December 2004 125 6,632 9 1,533 10,613 18,912

New issue of ordinary shares 12 31,443 – – – 31,455
Exercise of share options 4 645 – – – 649
Dividend paid – – – – –4,169 –4,169
Share Options - value of Employee Services – – – – 59 59
Net profit for the year – – – – 13,719 13,719
Foreign exchange differences on the translation 
of net equity investments in foreign enterprises – – –4 – – –4
At 31 December 2005 141 38,720 5 1,533 20,222 60,621
Other reserves as disclosed in the balance sheet comprise the translation and the merger reserves.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements – Unibet 2005
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  Note 21 Acquisitions 

(a) Acquisition of Global Leisure Partners Limited

On 19 August 2005, Unibet Group Plc acquired 100 per cent of the voting share capital of Global Leisure Partners Limited and its subsidiaries (“GLP”) for a total  
consideration of GBP 79,031,000. From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2005, the acquisition contributed GBP 6,263,000 to Gross winnings revenue and GBP 
2,335,000 to profit before tax. GLP contributed GBP 1,047,000 to the group’s net operating cash flows, paid GBP 2,000 in respect of interest, GBP nil in respect of  
taxation and utilised GBP 17,000 for capital expenditure.
All intangible assets were recognised at their respective fair values. The residual excess over the net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill in the financial statements.

  Carrying   
  values 
GBP 000 pre-acquisition Fair value

Intangible fixed assets  – 5,675
Property, plant and equipment  102  102
Receivables  3,508  3,508
Payables –5,625  –5,625
Taxation
 Current  –224  –224
 Deferred – –1,703
Cash and cash equivalents  4,587  4,587

Net assets acquired   6,320
Goodwill   72,711
Consideration   79,031

Consideration satisfied by:
Shares issued  31,455
Loan notes  22,250
Cash (including costs)  25,326
   79,031

Shares issued were valued at the market price at the date of acquisition, which was 180 SEK per share. Goodwill represents the value of the synergistic effects of the 
combined business together with the instant access to significant new markets.

The outflow of cash and cash equivalents on the acquisition of GLP is calculated as follows:
GBP 000

Cash consideration   25,326
Cash acquired   –4,587
   20,739

The intangible assets acquired as part of the acquisition of GLP can be analysed as follows:
GBP 000

Customer contracts and lists  4,825
Brand name   250
Licensing and royalty agreements   100
Computer software   500
   5,675

The result of the Group’s operations, as if the above acquisition had been made at the beginning of the year, is as follows:
GBP 000

Gross winnings revenue   51,181
Profit before tax   23,186

The acquired business earned Gross winnings revenue of GBP 8,137,000 from the beginning of the year to the acquisition date. From the date of acquisition to 31 
December 2005, the acquisition contributed GBP 6,263,000 to Gross winnings revenue.

Goodwill
During the year, the goodwill was tested for impairment on a value in use basis. No impairment of goodwill was recognised. A pre-tax discount rate of 9% was applied in 
the value in use calculation.
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 Note 22 Capital commitments

The Group has not entered into any contracted fixed asset expenditure as at 31 December 2005. 

 Note 23 Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:
   31 Dec 31 Dec 
GBP 000  2005 2004

Expiry date:
Within one year 10 80
In the second to fifth years inclusive 151 264
After five years 310 34

Operating lease payments represent rent paid by the Group on properties in the UK, Sweden, Malta and Belgium.

 Note 24 Post balance sheet event

On 15 February 2006, Unibet sold its entire holding (23 per cent) of ordinary shares in B2B Poker (Sweden) AB, together with certain other rights and warrants, to 
24hPoker AB. The proceeds totalled SEK 15 million of which SEK 10 million was payable on the same day and the remainder is payable on 1 September 2006.
 

 

 Note 26 Contingent liabilities

Currently the Group has not provided for potential or actual claims arising from the promotion of gaming activities in certain jurisdictions. Based on current legal advice 
the Directors do not anticipate that the outcome of proceedings and potential claims, if any, set out above will have a material adverse effect upon the Group’s financial 
position. Further details can be found in the Legal Environment on pages 24 and 25.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements – Unibet 2005

 Note 25 Related party transactions

For details of Directors’ Remuneration please refer to Remuneration Committee report on page 30.
The total amount paid to B2B Poker (Sweden) AB for services during the year was GBP 1,014,000 (2004: 178,000). At 31 December 2005, B2B Poker (Sweden) AB 
owed Unibet GBP 305,000 (2004: 305,000).
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Unibet Group plc

We have audited the group financial statements of Unibet Group 
plc for the year ended 31 December 2005 which comprise the 
Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, the reconciliation of movements 
in equity and the related notes. These Group financial statements have 
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.
 We have reported separately on the parent company financial 
statements of Unibet Group plc for the year ended 31 December 
2005 and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report 
that is described as having been audited.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and 
the group financial statements in accordance with applicable law 
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted 
by the European Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ 
Responsibilities.
 Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in 
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and 
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). This report, 
including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the company’s 
members as a body in accordance with Section 235 of the Companies 
Act 1985 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, 
accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other 
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come 
save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
 We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial 
statements give a true and fair view and whether the group financial 
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the 
Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also 
report to you if, in our opinion, the Directors’ Report is not consistent 
with the group financial statements, if we have not received all the 
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information 
specified by law regarding director’s remuneration and other 
transactions is not disclosed.
 We read other information contained in the Annual Report and 
consider whether it is consistent with the audited Group financial 
statements. The other information comprises only the Directors’ 
Report, the CEO’s comments, the Remuneration Committee Report, 
Business Performance Review and the Corporate Governance 
Statement. We consider the implications for our report if we become 

aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with 
the group financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to 
any other information.
 The maintenance and integrity of the Unibet Group plc website is 
the responsibility of the directors; the work carried out by the auditors 
does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, 
the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may have 
occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented 
on the website.
 Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and 
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in 
other jurisdictions.

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards 
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. 
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to 
the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements. It also 
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments 
made by the directors in the preparation of the group financial 
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate 
to the group’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately 
disclosed.
 We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the 
information and explanations which we considered necessary in 
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable 
assurance that the group financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. 
In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the 
presentation of information in the group financial statements.

Opinion
In our opinion:

• the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in 
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the 
state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2005 and of its profit 
and cash flows for the year then ended; and 

• the group financial statements have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS 
Regulation.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors

London
31 March 2006
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Options  

The Company operates two Option Schemes, the Unibet Group plc 
Unapproved Executive Share Option Scheme (the “Unapproved 
Scheme”) and the Unibet Group Pplc Approved Executive Share 
Option Scheme (the “Approved Scheme”) under which employees 
may acquire Ordinary Shares or SDRs. The difference between the 
Schemes is that the Unapproved Scheme does not comply with the 
relevant United Kingdom tax legislation while options granted under 
the Approved Scheme attract UK tax benefits. The main differences  
between the Approved Scheme and Unapproved Scheme are as follows. 
A participant may not hold Inland Revenue approved options over more 
than GBP 30,000 worth of Ordinary Shares (valued at date of grant). 
Alterations to key features of the Unapproved Scheme are subject to the 
prior approval of the Inland Revenue. The Directors can make, without 
shareholder approval, amendments to the Unapproved Scheme to obtain 
or maintain Inland Revenue approval. The principal terms of the  
Unapproved Scheme and Approved Scheme are set out below.

The Unapproved Scheme
Responsibility for operation
The Unapproved Scheme is operated by the Directors or, in respect of 
executive directors of the Company, by the Remuneration Committee 
appointed by the Board, which consists mainly of non-executive 
directors of the Company.

Eligibility
Employees and executive directors of the Company and any subsidiary 
companies are eligible to participate in the Unapproved Scheme. Non-
executive directors of these companies are not eligible to participate.

Grant of options
Options may be granted at the discretion of the Directors, or the 
Remuneration Committee in the case of executive directors of the 
Company, to selected employees, normally within 42 days of the  
announcement of the Company’s Q2 results. Options are not  
pensionable or transferable. 

Option price
The option price must not be less than the market value of the 
Ordinary Shares or SDRs. For this purpose, market value means the 
weighted average of the market quotations on the 5 trading days  
immediately prior to the date of grant.

Individual limits
The Board of Directors will decide the maximum number of Ordinary 
Shares or SDRs, which may be granted under option to individual 
participants. At any given time, the number of Ordinary Shares or SDRs 
under subsisting options will not exceed the following:

•  in the case of subsisting options held by the chief executive officer 
of the Company, 2.75 per cent of the ordinary share capital of the 
Company;

•  in the case of subsisting options held by the executive management 
(including the chief executive officer) of the Company and other 
participating companies, 3.75 per cent of the ordinary share capital 
of the Company;

•  in the case of subsisting options held by the executive management 
(including the chief executive officer) of the Company and other 
participating companies, and all other employees, 5 per cent of the 
ordinary share capital of the Company.

Scheme limit
At any time, not more than 5 per cent of the issued ordinary share 
capital of the Company may be issued or be issuable under the 
Unapproved Scheme and all other employees’ share schemes 
operated by the Company. This limit does not include options which 
have lapsed or been surrendered.

Exercise of options
Options will normally be exercisable in accordance with a vesting 
schedule set at the date of grant and will expire not later than the fifth 
anniversary of the date of grant. It is intended to grant options on the 
basis that they will become exercisable on the third anniversary of 
grant, for a period of one year, and expire on the fourth anniversary 
of grant. Exercise of options may only take place within prescribed 
exercise windows during the one year exercise period. The rules of the 
Unapproved Scheme allow the Directors to grant options on the basis 
that they will only be exercisable to the extent that certain performance 
conditions have been satisfied. 

Options may, however, be exercised early in certain circumstances. 
These include, for example, an employee leaving because of ill health, 
retirement, redundancy or death. On cessation of employment for other 
reasons, options will normally lapse.

Change of control, merger or other re-organisations
Options may generally be exercised early on a takeover, scheme of 
arrangement, merger or other corporate re-organisation. Alternatively, 
participants may be allowed or, in certain cases, required to exchange 
their options for options over shares in the acquiring company.

Issue of shares
Any Ordinary Shares issued on the exercise of options will rank equally 
with shares of the same class in issue on the date of allotment except 
in respect of rights arising by reference to a prior record date.
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Variation in share capital
If there is a consolidation or reduction in the share capital of the 
Company, options may be adjusted as the Directors consider 
appropriate in order to ensure that the number of Ordinary Shares 
or SDRs comprised in an option and the option price equal the same 
proportion of the share capital as against the same option price as was 
the case before the variation took place.

The Unapproved Scheme
Option No. of  Exercise price  
programme options Exercise period per option, GBP

2   30,312 1–15 May 2006  1.005
7 84,480 1–15 Nov 2008 12.82
8 45,360 1–15 Nov 2008 13.66
Total 160,152  

Approved scheme
The Approved Scheme is substantially the same as the Unapproved 
Scheme, except that it has been drafted to comply with the relevant 
United Kingdom tax legislation so that options granted under it will 
attract UK tax benefits. Options may be granted in respect of Ordinary 
Shares only.

The Approved Scheme
Option No. of  Exercise price  
programme options Exercise period per option, GBP

6 85,688 1–15 May 2006 1.005
9 23,815 1–15 Nov 2008 13.66
Total 109,503  

Exercise of options
On 12 May 2005, under the rules of Unibet’s option schemes no. 1 and 
5 for senior executives, 160,975 share options before the split, were 
exercised.  

Dilution effects
Provided options programmes 2 and 6–9 are fully exercised, the share 
capital of the Company will increase by a total maximum of GBP 
1,348.28 by the issue of a total maximum of 269,655 Ordinary Shares, 
corresponding to 0.96 per cent of the capital and votes in the Company.
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Board of Directors  

Anders Ström
Swedish citizen. Born 1970. Board member 
since incorporation. 
Executive Chairman.
Holding in the Company: 5,603,356 SDRs.

Daniel Johannesson
Swedish citizen. Born 1943. 
BSc (Econ) Göteborg School of Economics. 
ISMP, Harvard Business School. His other 
positions include Chairman of Millicom  
International Cellular SA, Luxembourg and 
Carmen Systems AB, Göteborg. Member 
of the Board of Directors of Kentor AB, 
Stockholm.
Holding in the Company: 3,000 SDRs.

Henrik Tjärnström
Swedish citizen. Born 1970. 
Board member since 2003. 
Senior Financial Manager at Skanska 
Infrastructure Development AB.
Other significant board assignments:
Orkdalsvegen AS.
Holding in the Company: 10,000 SDRs.

Johan Lindgren
Swedish citizen. Born 1957. Board member 
since 2003. 
MSc from the University of Stockholm, 
Sweden.
CEO Vodafone Sweden AB.
Other significant board assignments: Trade 
Extensions Tradeext AB.
Holding in the Company: 30,000 SDRs.

Peter Boggs
US citizen. Born 1948. Board member since 
2001. 
BA in American Studies from Washington 
College, Maryland USA.
Marketing consultant, since 2002.
Other significant board assignments: 
Barretstown Fund Gang Camp Ltd., Ireland. 
Holding in the Company: 8,875 SDRs.

Peter Lindell
Swedish citizen. Born 1954. Board member 
since 2002. 
MSc in Industrial Engineering and 
Management from the Institute of Technology, 
Linköping University, Sweden.
Senior partner at ITP Investment Group.
Other significant board assignments: Data-
effektiv i Sverige AB; I Teknisk Partner Invest AB; 
Media Workflow Management AB;  
Room 328 AB, 42Networks AB and 
Accelerator i Linköping AB (publ).
Holding in the Company: 1,625,614 SDRs, 
directly and through company. 

AUDITORS OF THE COMPANY 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers with audit partner 
Mr David Snell, from the 
PricewaterhouseCoopers London office.

The above-mentioned holdings include 
personal holdings, family holdings and 
holdings through companies in which they 
have an interest, and are as at 16 March 
2006. 

Peter Lindell

Anders Ström

Daniel Johannesson

Peter Boggs

Johan Lindgren

Henrik Tjärnström
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Petter Nylander
Swedish citizen. Born 1964. 
CEO.
BSc (Econ) from Stockholm University, Sweden. 
Mr. Nylander joined the Group in 2005. Prior 
to that date, Mr. Nylander was CEO and  
Managing Partner of OMD Sweden AB, which 
is part of the international Omnicom Group.
Member of the Board of Cherryföretagen 
during 2001–2003 and Ongame e-solutions 
during 2004–2005.
Holding in the Company: 22,100 SDRs and 
84,480 options in accordance with option 
programme 7.

Didier Dewyn
Belgian citizen. Born 1969. 
Deputy CEO.
Law degree from KUL Leuven and MBA 
from Vlerick Management School Gent.  
CEO of MrBookmaker since 2000. Prior 
to that Mr. Dewyn served as a tax and 
commercial lawyer with Linklaters De Bandt in 
Brussels, and Declerck & Partners in Kortrijk. 
Secretary General of the European Betting 
Association, EBA.
Holding in the Company: 379,621 SDRs

Susan Ball
English citizen. Born 1961. 
CFO.
Fellow of the Chartered Accountants in 
England and Wales (FCA) and BA (Hons) 
Accounting, University of Central England, UK.
Ms Ball joined the Group as CFO in 2003. 
Prior to that she spent 7 years as finance 
director of UK-listed Mosaic Investments 
Group plc, and has over 15 years experience 
in corporate finance and M&A.
Holding in the Company: 89,882 options 
(22,312 options in respect of option 
programme 2, 57,688 in respect of option 
programme 6 and 9,882 in respect of option 
programmes 8 and 9).

Michael Cornelis
Belgian citizen. Born 1958. 
CMO.
Fine arts and cinematography degree from 
Sint-Lukas art school Brussels. CMO of 
MrBookmaker since 2003. Prior to that 
Mr. Cornelis worked for different divisions 
of the international retail and distribution 
company Hachette Distribution Services.
Holding in the Company: 39,390 SDR’s and 
9,882 options in accordance with option 
programmes 8 and 9.

Daniel Johansson
Swedish citizen. Born 1975.
Head of Business Development and CIO.
Daniel has a broad background ranging from 
strategy and business development to large 
IT implementation projects. Previous roles 
include founder of own software development 
company, IT Consultant at Razorfish, CTO at 
an online stockbroker start-up company and 
Management Consultant at Accenture.
Holding in the Company: 0

Kristian Nylén
Swedish citizen. Born 1970. 
Chief Sports Betting Officer.
BSc in Business Administration, Mathematics 
and Statistics, University of Karlstad.
Holding in the Company: 52,000 SDRs and 
9,882 options in accordance with option 
programmes 8 and 9.

Mats Sjöstedt
Swedish citizen. Born 1959.  CTO
Holding in the pCompany: 1,600 SDRs. 

The above-mentioned holdings include 
personal holdings, family holdings and holdings 
through companies in which they have an 
interest, and are as at 16 March 2006. 

Senior executives  

Susan Ball

Petter Nylander

Michael CornelisMats Sjöstedt
Daniel Johansson

Kristian Nylén

Didier Dewyn
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When tossing a coin, the chance of heads is 50 per cent and the chance of tails is 50 per cent i.e. the total probability is 100 per cent. 
The odds are calculated as 1/probability, in this example 1/50 per cent = 2.00. 

To make money from arranging bets on a coin toss, the betting operator has to offer odds less than 2.00.
If the operator has set a Gross winnings revenue margin target of 10 per cent on Gross turnover, the odds to offer to the customers are 1.80 on 
each outcome (0.9 x 2.00).

Outcome Probability Odds no margin Odds 10% margin Odds 20% margin

Tails 50% 2.00 1.80 1.60

Heads 50% 2.00 1.80 1.60

Customer A bets 100 on Tails.

Customer B bets 100 on Heads.

The outcome of the toss is Tails

Odds 2.00 1.80 1.60

Customer A wins 200 180 160

Customer B wins 0 0 0

The operator’s gross winnings revenue 0 20 40

Gross turnover 200 200 200

Gross winnings revenue margin 0 10% 20%

The differences between different margins are apparent with this example:
If Operator A presents a Gross winnings revenue margin of 20 per cent, an average punter betting level stakes at GBP 5 per bet would on 
average be able to make 100 bets with an initial capital of GBP 100.

Operator B, offering a Gross winnings revenue margin of just 10 per cent would still achieve the same end result. However, the punter would have 
enjoyed twice the number of bets. With the same initial capital of GBP 100 and staking plan of GBP 5 per bet, he would on average be able to 
make 200 bets.

Moreover, the Gross turnover achieved by Operator B in the above example is twice as large as that of Operator A, whilst, Gross winnings revenue 
remains identical for both operators.

The concept of betting  
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The Annual General Meeting of Unibet Group plc will be held at  
6.30 p.m. on Wednesday 10 May 2006, at the Clarion Hotel,  
Ringvägen 98, Stockholm.

Right to participate
Holders of Swedish Depositary Receipts (“SDRs”) who wish to attend 
the AGM must be registered at VPC AB on Friday 28 April 2006 and  
notify Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) their intention to 
attend the AGM no later than 5 p.m. on Friday 5 May 2006, by filling  
in the enrolment form provided at www.unibetgroupplc.com/AGM,  
“Notification to holders of Swedish Depository Receipts in Unibet 
Group plc”. The form must be completed in full and delivered  
electronically.

Please note that conversions to and from SDRs and ordinary shares 
will not be permitted between 28 April and 10 May 2006.

Dividend
The Board of Directors proposes a dividend of SEK 2.25 per share/
SDR.

Financial information
Unibet Group plc’s financial information is available in Swedish and 
English. Reports can be obtained from Unibet’s website, 
www.unibetgroupplc.com or ordered by email at info@unibet.com. 
Distribution will be via email.
 Annual Reports can be ordered through the website, 
www.unibetgroupplc.com or ordered by email at info@unibet.com.

Unibet will publish financial reports  
for the financial year 2006 on  
the following dates:

l Interim Report January – March 2006, on 10 May 2006
l Interim Report January – June 2006, on 16 August 2006
l Interim Report January – September 2006, on 8 November 2006

Annual General Meeting  
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Average no. of employees
Average number of employees based on 
headcounts at the month end.

Dividend per share
Dividends paid divided by the fully diluted 
weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 
for the period.

Earnings per share, fully diluted
Profit after tax adjusted for any effects of 
dilutive potential Ordinary Shares divided by 
the fully diluted weighted average number of 
Ordinary Shares for the period.

EBIT
Earnings before interest and taxation, equates 
to Profit from operations.

EBIT margin
EBIT as a percentage of gross winnings 
revenue.

EEA
The Agreement on the European Economic 
Area.

EFTA
The European Free Trade Association.

Equity/assets ratio
Shareholders’ equity as a percentage of total 
assets.

Equity per share
Total assets less total liabilities, divided by the 
weighted average number of Ordinary shares 
for the year.

Gross profit
Gross winnings revenue less betting duty.

Gross turnover
Amounts receivable in respect of bets placed 
on sporting events, together with other income 
from non-sports betting.

Gross winnings revenue
For sports betting, represents Gross turnover 
less payouts; for non-sports betting, equates 
to Gross turnover.

No. of active customers
Number of active customers is defined as 
total registered customers who have placed a 
bet with Unibet during the last 90 days.

No. of registered customers
Number of registered customers means 
the total number of customers on Unibet’s 
customer base.

Operating margin
Profit from operations as a percentage  
of gross winnings revenue.

Profit margin
Profit after tax as a percentage of gross 
winnings revenue.

Return on total assets
Profit after tax as a percentage of average 
total assets.

Return on total capital
Profit after tax as a percentage of  
Total Capital.

Salary and remuneration excluding social 
security costs
All salaries and other form of remuneration 
payable to employees and company officers 
excluding any related social security costs.

Total capital
Total capital is equal to total assets or balance 
sheet total.

Weighted average no. of shares
Calculated as the weighted average number 
of Ordinary Shares outstanding during  
the year.

Weighted average no. of shares, fully 
diluted
Calculated as the weighted average number 
of Ordinary Shares outstanding and potentially 
outstanding (i.e. including the effects of 
exercising all share options and converting all 
convertible loan notes) during the year.



Unibet Group plc
Melbury House

51 Wimbledon Hill Road
London SW19 7QW

United Kingdom
Telephone +44 870 145 2400  

Fax +44 870 145 2500
Customer service +356 2343 1610

info@unibet.com
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